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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Good morning.

          3  I am Council Member Jim Gennaro, Chair of the

          4  Council's Committee on Environmental Protection.  I

          5  welcome you to today's hearing on a package of six

          6  bills, that as a group, seek to ensure that goods

          7  used by New York City agencies will promote

          8  environmental and public health, and workers'

          9  safety.

         10                 Let me begin with some background.

         11  In almost every category of goods, there will be

         12  some products that are more environmentally friendly

         13  than others.  Products that are more energy

         14  efficient, have a greater recycle content, or

         15  contain fewer toxic ingredients.  In many instances,

         16  there is little or no cost premium that is

         17  associated with choosing more environmentally

         18  friendly products.  Often it is simply a matter of

         19  identifying and seeking out these products.  For

         20  example, we all know that recycled paper pretty much

         21  cost the same as non recycled paper.

         22                 Each year New York City spends around

         23  $8 billion on a multitude types of goods.  The

         24  magnitude of these purchases suggests that promoting

         25  the use of environmentally friendly products will
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          2  not only improve the City's environment, but also

          3  boost the availability of green products in the

          4  marketplace.  And certainly, we should be leading by

          5  example as we have done in many other instances, and

          6  we should do it here too.

          7                 In terms of environmentally

          8  responsible purchasing, the bills we are hearing

          9  today hold the promise of taking New York City from

         10  the back of the pack to the forefront, where we

         11  should be.  The place that the greatest city on

         12  earth should be.

         13                 The centerpiece of this legislative

         14  package is Intro. 534, sponsored by Council Member

         15  Bill DeBlasio and me. This bill creates an office

         16  within the Office of the Mayor that is tasked with

         17  implementing and updating the environmental and

         18  health standards detailed in the rest of the bills

         19  we will be hearing today.  This office, the Office

         20  of Environmental Purchasing will also be charged

         21  with establishing additional environmental and

         22  health standards, and coordinating with City

         23  agencies to ensure compliance.

         24                 The five other bills set the minimum

         25  standards that this Office of Environmental
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          2  Purchasing will implement.

          3                 For the sake of time, and I will not

          4  go into detail, but just briefly mention each of

          5  these bills.

          6                 Intro. 536- A, which I am sponsoring,

          7  revises and revamps the Energy Star Bill that you

          8  all remember was passed by the Council in 2003.

          9  Under this new bill any energy consuming good used

         10  by City agencies will have to be Energy Star

         11  Certified and meet other federal energy efficiency

         12  standards.

         13                 Intro. 545, sponsored by Council

         14  Member Recchia, Speaker Miller and me, updates the

         15  City's laws regarding the use of recycled material.

         16  The City will be required to abide by EPA's

         17  Guidelines for the minimum recycled content of a

         18  wide range of goods.

         19                 Intro. 546, which is being sponsored

         20  by Council Member Vallone and me.  And Council

         21  Member Vallone is chairing the Public Safety hearing

         22  right next door.  Requires that the City match the

         23  State's commitment to Green Power.  Under this

         24  legislation, City agencies, like State agencies,

         25  will be required to obtain 10 percent of their
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          2  energy from renewable resources by 2006, and 20

          3  percent by 2010.  This legislation goes one step

          4  beyond the State and requires 30 percent renewable

          5  energy by 2020.

          6                 Intro. 544, a bill sponsored by

          7  Council Member Quinn and me, regulates the City's

          8  use of goods that contain hazardous materials.  The

          9  bill requires that the City only use Green Building

         10  products, like carpets and paints, and electronic

         11  equipment that has reduced content of toxins, such

         12  as lead, mercury and cadmium.

         13                 Finally, Intro. 522, sponsored by

         14  Council Member Moskowitz, the Speaker, --  Pardon

         15  me, what is it?  Intro. 552, misprint in the

         16  statement over here, but I have got great staff.

         17  Intro. 552, legislation sponsored by Council Member

         18  Moskowitz, the Speaker, me, and Council Member

         19  Quinn, prohibits the City from applying cleaning and

         20  other custodial products to City- owned or leased

         21  property, unless the products meet certain

         22  environmental and health requirements.  Agencies are

         23  also required to make best efforts to use products

         24  that are made from non- hazardous material, and that

         25  will minimize worker exposure to toxic chemicals.
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          2                 I should add that each of the bills

          3  being heard today apply to both City agencies and

          4  contractors in the fulfillment of contracts with

          5  City agencies, and require annual reporting on

          6  compliance with their requirements.  And so that is

          7  the host of legislation that we have before us

          8  today.  It is quite ambitious and far- reaching as

          9  this Committee and its great members and members of

         10  the Council try to be.

         11                 And I know we are eager to hear from

         12  the good representatives of the Administration, but

         13  before we proceed I wish to recognize the presence

         14  of Council Member Lopez from Manhattan; Council

         15  Member Koppell from the Bronx; and in a special way

         16  to recognize all of the diligently staff work that

         17  went into making these bills and this hearing

         18  possible, we have the Counsel to the Committee,

         19  Donna De Costanzo.  We are also joined by Russell

         20  Unger, another lawyer on the Council staff who did a

         21  real human's effort in getting these bills in place.

         22  We are joined, also, by Richard Colon.  My own

         23  excellent Chief of Staff, Peter Washburn, who worked

         24  very hard on these, as well.

         25                 And without further ado, I would like
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          2  to thank, well, I would like to thank all of the

          3  people in the audience who are here today to

          4  participate in our hearing.  We look forward to

          5  hearing your views in full.  And with that said, I

          6  will ask the Counsel to the Committee, Donna De

          7  Costanzo to swear in the witnesses, and the

          8  witnesses are Jonathan Dickinson, Senior Project

          9  Manager of the Office of Environmental Coordination;

         10  Gil Quiniones of New York City EDC, top energy

         11  person for the City, always good to see Gil; Marla

         12  Simpson of the Mayor's Office of Contracts; and

         13  Doctor Ramona Ledesma- Garrido, I hope I am saying

         14  that right, of DCAS, the Bureau of Quality

         15  Assurance.

         16                 I'm sorry, I'm sorry, okay, I love

         17  Margarita, I want to state that on the record, and

         18  so she is wonderful.

         19                 And so, Donna, if you could do the

         20  honors, and then in whatever order you wish, you can

         21  state your name for the record, and proceed with

         22  your good testimony.  Donna.

         23                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         24  right hands? In the testimony that you are about to

         25  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the
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          2  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          3                 ALL:  I do.

          4                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

          5                 MS. SIMPSON:  Good morning, Mr.

          6  Chairman, and members of the Committee.  I am Marla

          7  Simpson.  I am the Director of the Mayor's Office of

          8  Contract Services.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Marla, just

         10  hang on, I want to make sure that I have your

         11  statement in front of me.  I have a couple of

         12  statements here.

         13                 MS. SIMPSON:  Mine is one with a

         14  color picture on the back.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh you show

         16  off, you show off here, that is great.

         17                 MS. SIMPSON:  Okay?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, I got it

         19  now, please, proceed.

         20                 MS. SIMPSON:  In the capacity as

         21  Director I also serve as the City's Chief

         22  Procurement Officer, and I oversee in the activities

         23  of all of the agency chief contracting officers, or

         24  ACCOs.  In addition to the Mayor's Executive Order

         25  of last summer, my office has assumed the oversight
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          2  role of what was formerly known as the Mayor's

          3  Office of Construction, and we also provide policy

          4  development support to the Procurement Policy Board.

          5                 My colleagues and I are very pleased

          6  to be here today on behalf of Mayor Bloomberg, who

          7  has made sustainability a critical focus of our

          8  reform effort and indeed of procurement policy

          9  development, generally.  We will update you on the

         10  Administration's initiatives, and we will offer

         11  comments on the bills.

         12                 With me today is not Bob Kulikowski,

         13  despite my statement to the contrary.  As you know,

         14  it is John Dickinson from the Office of

         15  Environmental Coordination, who will discuss the

         16  City's efforts to promote sustainability.  In

         17  addition, Dr. Ramona Ledesma- Garrido, the Executive

         18  Director of the Bureau of Quality Assurance at the

         19  Division of Municipal Supply Services of DCAS, who

         20  will detail the environmental procurement

         21  initiatives for goods and equipment.  And in

         22  addition, I am joined by Gil Quiniones, the Senior

         23  Vice President for Energy and Telecommunication at

         24  the New York City Economic Development Corporation,

         25  who will provide an update concerning our efforts to
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          2  increase energy efficiency and promote the

          3  development of Green Power.

          4                 At the conclusion of my colleagues'

          5  testimony, I will return to discuss some

          6  construction initiatives and specific comments on

          7  the bills.

          8                 But before we begin, I would like to

          9  do a brief overview of what the City buys.  I have

         10  included in my printed testimony some charts that

         11  document these in graphic format.  The amounts that

         12  you see on the charts, while very large, are

         13  actually understated in that most of the data

         14  reflects the purchases of just the 34 Mayoral

         15  agencies that operate under the governance of the

         16  PPB Rules, and we will explain --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Hang on, let

         18  just separate the charts out so I see what I am

         19  looking at as you are speaking.

         20                 MS. SIMPSON:  Certainly.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         22                 MS. SIMPSON:  That means, for

         23  example, that the first two charts do not include

         24  the purchases of such agencies as the Department of

         25  Education, School Construction, the Housing
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          2  Authority, EDC, HHC, or CUNY.  Each of which have

          3  aggressive programs to promote environmentally

          4  responsible procurement, as well.  Not counting

          5  purchases that are below $5,000, which we call a

          6  micro purchase area, the 34 Mayoral agencies have

          7  entered into, in Fiscal 2004, approximately 7,600

          8  contracts.  That totals over $9.5 billion in goods

          9  and services.  In addition, we obtain a variety of

         10  energy, Telecommunications, and other public utility

         11  services through methods that are outside the PPB

         12  Rule.

         13                 Under the City Charter, as you know,

         14  DCAS is charged with the responsibility of

         15  contracting for most of the goods that are purchased

         16  and required by Mayoral agencies. Exceptions to that

         17  centralized purchasing structure for goods, includes

         18  small purchases, which is a level that was recently

         19  raised to $100,000, certain highly specialized goods

         20  that are only used by one agency, and goods, such as

         21  building supplies or computer hardware or software,

         22  that are embedded sometimes within the construction

         23  or IT services contracts.

         24                 Conversely, while there are

         25  categories that we do procure centrally in the
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          2  services arena, and the agencies that do that are

          3  DCAS, DDC, and DOITT, for example, the vast majority

          4  of all of the City services are procured

          5  individually by separate agencies.  Within the $9.5

          6  billion of PPB purchases, nearly 40 percent went to

          7  provide human services.  And I draw your attention

          8  to that because much of the 40 percent slice relates

          9  to the contracts with community- based organization

         10  that serve clients in neighborhoods throughout the

         11  City.

         12                 A little over a quarter of the $9.5

         13  billion supports our construction program, and that

         14  includes architecture, engineering, and other

         15  consulting services.  And a little over a quarter of

         16  the volume goes for a mix of other kinds of services

         17  in the professional, technology area, as well as

         18  such areas as cleaning, delivery, printing, or

         19  maintenance.  The remainder, which totals about 6

         20  percent is what the City spends on goods and

         21  equipment.  Within that universe, the larger

         22  segments include vehicles and motorized equipment at

         23  about 31 percent, fuel at 12 percent, and computers

         24  and technology at 11 percent.

         25                 We have shown some other large
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          2  categories in the chart for such things as

          3  communications, electronic equipment, paint, food,

          4  and office furniture.

          5                 Without further ado, I would like to

          6  now turn to my colleagues on the panel who will each

          7  describe the initiatives that are particular to

          8  their agencies, and we begin with John Dickinson.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 MR. DICKINSON:  Good morning,

         11  Chairman Gennaro, and members of the Environmental

         12  Protection Committee.  I am Jonathan Dickinson,

         13  Senior Project Manager in the New York City Office

         14  of Environmental Coordination.  I am testifying on

         15  behalf of Robert Kulikowski, Director of OEC, who

         16  was unable to be here due to a family emergency.

         17  Thank you for giving me the opportunity to testify

         18  on this proposed legislation today.

         19                 New York City by the very nature of

         20  its dense built environment is perhaps the most

         21  environmentally, sustainable city in the United

         22  States.  The City has been a leader in developing

         23  and implementing some of the most successful,

         24  sustainable initiatives in the country.  A few

         25  examples include operating the largest, alternative
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          2  fuel, Municipal vehicle fleet in the country; the

          3  development of the Staten Island Blue Belt, and the

          4  creation of the Department of Design and

          5  Construction's high performance building guidelines,

          6  however, much more needs to be done.

          7                 Recognizing this, Mayor Bloomberg

          8  formerly designated the Mayor's Task Force on

          9  Sustainability on November 18th, 2004, and charged

         10  it with coordinating and facilitating the

         11  corporation of environmentally, sustainable

         12  practices into City's government planning

         13  operations, policy making, and regulatory functions.

         14                 To accomplish Mayor Bloomberg's

         15  charge the Task Force was assembled in early

         16  January, co chaired by the Environmental

         17  Coordination and the Mayor's Office of Operations,

         18  and comprised of representatives from the Department

         19  of Buildings, City Planning, Citywide Administrative

         20  Services, Design and Construction, Environmental

         21  Protection, Parks and Recreation, and Sanitation,

         22  and the Economic Development Corporation, and the

         23  Office of Management and Budget.  The Task Force has

         24  formed eight working groups covering each of the

         25  following topical areas:
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          2                 1.  Buildings and infrastructure.

          3                 2.  Solid Waste Management.

          4                 3.  Energy Management.

          5                 4.  Water Management.

          6                 5.  Transportation.

          7                 6.  Financial incentives.

          8                 7.  Open Space Management.

          9                 8.  Purchasing.

         10                 Each subcommittee is made up of four

         11  to eight representatives from different agencies to

         12  encourage the best communication and interagency

         13  cooperation possible.

         14                 Many of the issues covered by this

         15  proposed legislation are currently being discussed

         16  by the Task Force.  For example, the Purchasing

         17  Working Group has begun to identify new sustainable

         18  procurement opportunities, and the Energy Management

         19  Working Group is reviewing options for the

         20  procurement of renewable energy.  Implementation of

         21  new sustainable initiatives, achievable over the

         22  short term, will occur simultaneously with the

         23  continued development of strategies that will take

         24  longer to achieve.  This Task Force will expand upon

         25  the demonstrated successful history of sustainable
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          2  initiatives, and will continue to help New York a

          3  healthier city in which to live and work.

          4                 Thank you, again, for the opportunity

          5  to testify today.

          6                 DR. LEDESMA- GARRIDO:  Thank you.

          7  Good morning, Chairman Gennaro and members of the

          8  Committee of Environmental Protection.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You have to

         10  speak right into the microphone.

         11                 DR. LEDESMA- GARRIDO:  Oh, I see.  I

         12  am Dr. Ramona Ledesma- Garrido, Executive Director

         13  of the Bureau of Quality Assurance (BQA) of the

         14  Division of Municipal Supply Services (DMSS) at the

         15  Department of Citywide Administration Services

         16  (DCAS).  I am joined by my colleague, Jennifer Blum,

         17  Director of Special Project at DCAS.  Thank you for

         18  this opportunity to comment briefly on DCAS'S

         19  environmentally preferable purchasing activities,

         20  and our citywide training of procurement

         21  professionals in the environmental preferable

         22  purchasing strategies.

         23                 I have been the Executive Director of

         24  the Bureau of Quality Assurance of the Division of

         25  Municipal Supply Services since May 2004.  Prior to
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          2  that, I worked in private industry in the

          3  microelectronics field.  My Ph.D. Is in Chemical

          4  Engineering. Additionally, I am certified by the

          5  Project Management Institute as a Project Management

          6  Professional (EMP).

          7                 DCAS, through the Division of

          8  Municipal Supply Services, is the City's chief

          9  procurement entity responsible for the purchase of

         10  goods whose total price exceeds the small purchase

         11  limit.  DMSS provides a wide range of efficient,

         12  high quality procurement- related services to other

         13  City agencies by:

         14                 Producing bids that attract a

         15  competitive pool of vendors to obtain the best value

         16  for City purchases;

         17                 By developing product specifications;

         18                 Evaluating products;

         19                 By warehousing and distributing

         20  commonly used items;

         21                 By coordinating the redistribution

         22  and disposal of surplus goods;

         23                 And by developing, implementing, and

         24  enforcing the policies that governs the City's

         25  vehicle fleet; and
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          2                 Inspecting goods to ensure they meet

          3  contract specifications.

          4                 I am pleased to have available for

          5  you this morning, DCAS's "Environmentally Preferable

          6  Procurement and Waste Prevention Annual Report for

          7  Fiscal Year 2004."  This report highlights DCAS's

          8  progress and accomplishment over the past fiscal

          9  year in the area of Environmentally Preferable

         10  procurement.  A copy of this report is attached to

         11  the testimony you have in front of your today.

         12                 In FY 2004, DMSS purchased

         13  approximately $675 million of goods for more than 60

         14  City agencies and other government entities, such as

         15  the Health and Hospitals Corporation (HHC).  As a

         16  direct result of our environmentally preferable

         17  contracting efforts, more than $100 million

         18  operating of our purchasing was for EP products.

         19                 DCAS staff takes a proactive role in

         20  environmentally sound purchasing, recycling, and

         21  waste reduction. We research EP products and gather

         22  information on EP Purchasing from the EPA and other

         23  governmental entities.  For example, we currently

         24  are researching bio- based motor oil and recycled

         25  anti freeze.  We regularly assist client agencies
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          2  with the identification of opportunities to use

          3  recycled- content products and other products with

          4  EP criteria.  DMSS staff are continually adding EP

          5  criteria into bid specifications.  Recent

          6  accomplishments include the purchase of urinal

          7  deodorizers without para- dichlorobenzene, the

          8  additional purchase of hybrid electric vehicles, and

          9  the increased use of ultra- low sulfur diesel fuel.

         10  In addition, we have developed specifications for

         11  carpet containing only recyclable nylon 6 fibers,

         12  and identified EP products such as biodegradable,

         13  mechanic hand cleaner, and CFC- free disinfectant

         14  spray that are available through the Central

         15  Storehouse.

         16                 In FY 2004, DMSS had commodity

         17  contracts worth $35 million in place for the

         18  procurement of environmentally preferable products

         19  made from recycled content.  This is more than a 7

         20  percent increase from $32.7 million in FY 2003.

         21  Through DMSS, City agencies purchase recycled copy

         22  paper with 30 percent post- consumer content.  Paper

         23  with the highest recycled content is also used

         24  whenever it meets the stated need in DMSS's

         25  requirement contracts for printing services.
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          2                 Almost $1.5 million in purchases were

          3  made in 2004 for office supplies containing recycled

          4  content through our contract with Staples Business

          5  Advantage, including plastic desk organizers, post-

          6  it notes, and file folders.

          7                 As in prior years, DMSS continued to

          8  establish contracts that allow client agencies to

          9  procure a wide variety of non- paper goods that

         10  contain recycled content and meet other EP criteria.

         11    Some of the products available for agency use

         12  include: Absorbent compound, asphalt mixtures,

         13  plastic bags and polyethylene liners, toner

         14  cartridges and traffic cones.

         15                 As you know, Local Law 30 of 2003

         16  requires that DCAS purchase Energy Star- labeled

         17  products whenever there are six manufacturers of a

         18  particular product.  In FY 2004, DMSS's Energy Star

         19  purchases totaled $72.7 million, of which $59.7

         20  million was for computers and related products, $11

         21  million was for copiers, and $1 million was for fax

         22  machine.

         23                 Local Law 6 of 1991 requires that 80

         24  percent of all light duty, vehicle purchases be

         25  alternative fuel vehicles. The City generally far
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          2  exceeds the Local Law 6 mandate, and in 2004, 89

          3  percent of the new vehicle purchases were for

          4  alternative fuel vehicles.  The City purchased 197

          5  additional hybrid Toyota Prius cars in FY 2004,

          6  bringing the City fleet to a total of these vehicles

          7  to 834.  The citywide fleet currently includes a

          8  total of 3,301 alternative fuel vehicles.  The City

          9  also purchased $116,000 of alternative fuel ethanol,

         10  and about $205,000 of compressed natural gas.

         11  Additionally, the City purchased $3.2 million of

         12  ultra- low sulfur diesel fuel.

         13                 Another critically important function

         14  of DMSS is the waste prevention through the

         15  reallocation or marketing and sale of equipment,

         16  materials, and products no longer needed by City

         17  agencies.  In FY 2004, DCAS's Office of Surplus

         18  Activities continued to manage the City's surplus

         19  program effectively and helped to divert various

         20  materials from the waste stream through vehicle

         21  auctions, sealed bids, on- site sales, and

         22  redistribution or direct transfers of materials

         23  between agencies.  These materials included

         24  vehicles, heavy equipment, furniture, and scrap

         25  metal.  In FY 2004, the bi- monthly vehicle auctions
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          2  generated more than $4 million, with an average

          3  vehicle price of $1,815.  In addition, we generated

          4  $3.2 million from competitive sealed bids of heavy

          5  equipment and other items including scrap metal.

          6  Whenever possible, DCAS arranges for the direct

          7  transfer of goods between agencies.  In FY 2004,

          8  goods transferred via the inter- agency program for

          9  beneficial re- use were valued at $1.9 million.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Dr. Garrido, if

         11  I could, I am going to, your testimony is very, very

         12  comprehensive, and clearly very relevant, if this

         13  were indeed an oversight hearing on the

         14  environmental procurement practices of the

         15  Administration, which this is not.  This is, we are

         16  really looking to hear testimony on the six bills

         17  that we have before us today.  And you know,

         18  certainly, it is relevant what your agency has been

         19  doing with regard environmental procurement.  But I

         20  am really looking forward to get to the actual

         21  detailed, you know, comments that the Administration

         22  has on the bill.

         23                 And so with that said, you have the

         24  one section left on the Procurement Training

         25  Institute, which we will hang onto,  which we will
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          2  read.  And so I would like to thank you for your

          3  comprehensive testimony.

          4                 And Gil, I know you have a statement,

          5  and I am going to ask you to sort of hit the salient

          6  points, which I think you have to hit, and then I

          7  know that the actual detailed testimony on the bills

          8  will be from Marla, because you are going to

          9  continue with your statement.

         10                 MS. SIMPSON:  That is correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Because we have

         12  got to get to the actual testimony on the bills.

         13                 MS. SIMPSON:  You got it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We have got

         15  like 30 witnesses and like only a little bit of

         16  time.  And so thank you, thank you Doctor.  Gil, I

         17  am putting you on, and then thanks for being to the

         18  point, and then Marla is going to walk us through

         19  the actual, you know, detailed comments.  Gil, take

         20  it away.

         21                 MR. QUINIONES:  Good morning,

         22  Chairman Gennaro, and members of the Environmental

         23  Protection Committee.  I am Gil Quiniones, Senior

         24  Vice President for Energy and Telecommunications at

         25  the New York City Economic Development Corporation.
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          2  Thank you for this opportunity to testify about,

          3  specifically about Intro. 546, green power.

          4                 In 2003, Mayor Bloomberg designated

          5  EDC's Energy Department to take the lead in

          6  coordinating and addressing energy- related matters

          7  on behalf of the City.  In my capacity as head of

          8  the Energy Department, I act as the City's chief

          9  consultant on energy policy issues, such issues

         10  including energy efficiency and resource supply;

         11  advocating for competitive energy prices for all New

         12  York City consumers; and coordinating the City's

         13  response to proposed energy projects such as power

         14  plants, transmission lines, and natural gas pipe

         15  lines.

         16                 The Energy Department at EDC works

         17  closely with other City agencies, DCAS, DEP, and the

         18  Law Department on regulatory matters.  In addition

         19  we participate in state and federal regulatory

         20  proceedings such as pending Public Service

         21  Commission cases, and serves as the principal

         22  representative to the New York ISO and to NYSERDA,

         23  the New York State Energy Research Development

         24  Authority.  We also provide advice to the City and

         25  its individual agencies on a wide range of energy
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          2  related issues.

          3                 The use of green power helps to

          4  protect the environment since it produces none of

          5  the emissions associated with global warming, acid

          6  rain, and particulate matter. Purchasing green power

          7  also supports energy diversity and independence from

          8  fossil fuels.  That kind of independence diversifies

          9  risks of various kinds including financial and fuel

         10  risks.  Finally, purchasing green power may help

         11  develop new energy capacity as well.

         12                 The City agencies currently receive

         13  208 million kilowatt hours of energy from small-

         14  scale hydro projects.  This is about 5.2 percent of

         15  the City's four billion- kilowatt hours of total

         16  electricity used annually.  And as you know, on

         17  February 9th, EDC announced a contract to purchase

         18  approximately 12 percent of the average annual

         19  electricity use of the Brooklyn Armory and Bush

         20  Terminals, which is 3.7 million kilowatt hours

         21  through green power from a wind farm in Upstate, New

         22  York.

         23                 The City plans to continue to

         24  purchase green power and increase its renewable

         25  energy portfolio, with the help of grants and
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          2  financing from NYSERDA and the New York Power

          3  Authority.  It currently has in place in the design

          4  planning phase, or under construction, over 100

          5  kilowatt of solar panels from eight separate

          6  locations throughout the City, and over 2,400

          7  kilowatts of energy from fuel cells located at eight

          8  locations, including four water pollution control

          9  plants where fuel cells run on anaerobic digester

         10  gas produced in the sewage digestion process.  In

         11  addition, pilot demonstrations on in- city wind

         12  turbines are currently taking place at St. George's

         13  Ferry Terminal and Governor's Island.

         14                 The City plans to acquire 100 million

         15  more kilowatt- hours of energy from small hydro

         16  plants starting at 2006.  This will bring our use of

         17  electricity from small hydrochlorothiazide

         18  facilities up to 7.7 percent, which is almost a 50

         19  percent increase in one year.  Finally, NYPA, the

         20  City's electricity supplier, has issued an RFP for

         21  over 500 megawatts of capacity and energy beginning

         22  in 2008, with the set- aside for green power, as

         23  part of the City's new long- term electricity supply

         24  contract.  Proposals are now under review.

         25                 While the City agrees with the
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          2  importance of promoting green power, prescriptive

          3  mandates, such as the proposed requirements in

          4  Intro. 546, are problematic for two key reasons.

          5                 Green power, unfortunately, comes at

          6  a cost premium.  The New York State Energy and

          7  Research Development Authority (NYSERDA), the Public

          8  Service Commission (PSC), and the City have found

          9  that the prevailing cost premium for wind energy,

         10  the most cost- effective and abundant green power

         11  option, can range from 40 percent to 60 percent per

         12  kilowatt hour compared to standard prices.  This

         13  premium includes the Federal Production Tax Credit,

         14  which may not be available in future years.  Without

         15  the Federal Production Tax Credit, the premium can

         16  range from 76 percent to 98 percent.

         17                 This premium must be analyzed in

         18  terms of the City's overall budget needs.  This

         19  year, the City's electricity costs will increase by

         20  over 17 percent due to recent rate increases from

         21  NYPA and Con Edison, for Con Edison's transmissions

         22  and distributions.  That increase has begun to cost

         23  City taxpayers more than $50 million a year.  To

         24  increase costs approximately 50 percent or more to

         25  anything beyond a modest portion of our total energy
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          2  use is not appropriate right now.

          3                 The cost premium to purchase green

          4  power must also be evaluated in terms of competing

          5  energy investments.  Given budget limitations, there

          6  is a tradeoff between purchasing Supply, by buying

          7  green, or reducing Demand.  Presently, each dollar

          8  invested in energy efficiency upgrades will conserve

          9  more fossil fuel, and therefore protect the

         10  environment more than the same dollar invested in

         11  renewable sources.

         12                 The second problem is that mandates

         13  do not allow for changes in the he energy

         14  marketplace.  The price of green power has declined

         15  over the last two decades and may continue to

         16  change.  Mandating City agencies to lock into long-

         17  term contracts now may prevent the City from

         18  entering contracts at more cost effective prices as

         19  technologies and markets change.  The City's

         20  electricity supplier, NYPA, has adopted a laddering

         21  energy purchasing strategy.  It involves executing

         22  supply contracts of varying lengths and amounts.

         23  This avoids the risk that the City will purchase all

         24  of its supplies when prices are highest.  It is Akin

         25  to the well- known "dollar cost averaging" strategy
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          2  in investing, whereby the investor regularly invests

          3  in the market regardless of market conditions, which

          4  smooth out returns over time.  It also allows the

          5  City to evaluate at the end of each contract what

          6  the optimal proportion of varying sources is in its

          7  portfolio.  The City plans to adopt this strategy

          8  when procuring renewable energy.

          9                 In summary, the City supports the use

         10  of green power, but cannot support a bill that

         11  mandates levels of procurement without considering

         12  future energy market conditions, technology

         13  advancements, and the cost and benefits associated

         14  with them.  Thank you, again, for the opportunity to

         15  testify on tissue issue.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         17  thank you, Gil. Now I know, Marla, you are going to

         18  finish your statement, right?

         19                 MS. SIMPSON:  Right.  I am going to

         20  truncate it indifference to your comments, Mr.

         21  Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, if you

         23  would just focus on those items that relate to the

         24  legislation for us today, that would be great.  I

         25  know you have green billing stuff in here and
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          2  everything.

          3                 MS. SIMPSON:  Just one sentence

          4  commercial, I just want to note that the Design and

          5  Construction Excellence Initiative, which is

          6  summarized in the testimony and is the working

          7  initiative of our Construction Agency, is designed

          8  as one of its primary goals to include

          9  sustainability.  And we are looking to promote

         10  quality in methods and materials.  And some examples

         11  of projects are set forth in the testimony.  But I

         12  will move on.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         14  Marla, but before you do, I just want to let my

         15  colleagues know that when Marla finishes her

         16  statement we will hear from Council Member Recchia

         17  and Council Member Quinn.  Council Member Recchia is

         18  sponsor of Intro. 545, Council Member Quinn Intro.

         19  544, they will have brief statements on their

         20  excellent bills.  It is a pleasure to have them both

         21  here with us today.

         22                 Marla, please.

         23                 MS. SIMPSON:  Sure.  So you have

         24  heard testimony thus far on goods, energy, a variety

         25  of services including construction, which all are
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          2  affected by various bills that are before you today.

          3    Because of the very wide range of our City agency

          4  needs, one of the questions that we would like to

          5  offer today is that a one- size fits all, which on

          6  any of these standards is seldom going to be

          7  appropriate or practical.

          8                 For one thing, when we speak of these

          9  as being procurement that are governed by City law,

         10  principally  the Charter, the Administrative Code,

         11  and PPB Rules, it is very important to recognize

         12  that a very complex web of State law, also severely

         13  circumscribes our discretion in City procurement.

         14  Indeed, there are ways that State and Federal

         15  agencies are themselves able to purchase that we are

         16  not permitted to use.

         17                 General Municipal Law 103 mandates

         18  that virtually all of our goods purchases and many

         19  kinds of services must be procured by competitive,

         20  sealed bid.  It specifically requires the City to

         21  ensure that we go out in our solicitations to a wide

         22  array of competitors, and that we obtain to the

         23  maximum extent possible the lowest prices for every

         24  category of procurement.

         25                 Section 104 (b) of that same law,
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          2  GML, allows us somewhat more discretion when we

          3  procure certain kinds of services, such as design.

          4  But even there, we are required by State and City

          5  Rules to promote broad competition and to obtain a

          6  fair and reasonable price.

          7                 Similarly, Section 162 of the State

          8  Finance Law constrains City Procurement.  That law

          9  includes a very long list of products and services,

         10  including many that are in  the janitorial and

         11  cleaning area for which we are required to first

         12  offer our business to what the State calls its

         13  preferred source energies, which for this purpose is

         14  principally the New York State's Industry for the

         15  Disabled or NYSID.  Even in those areas where the

         16  State Finance Law allows or encourages

         17  environmentally friendly procurement, such as the

         18  Section 165 that bans localities use of tropical

         19  hardwoods in construction, and that is a ban that is

         20  incorporated as part of our standard contract.  The

         21  State requires that we balance this policy against

         22  other factors. The State Finance Law exempts

         23  contracts for which there are no acceptable, non-

         24  tropical hardwood alternatives; contracts for which

         25  that do not exist, suppliers that are able to meet
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          2  our need with an acceptable alternative; and

          3  contracts where the alternative to tropical hardwood

          4  substantially increase costs. Those exceptions

          5  demonstrate that the policy governing State Law is

          6  to treat competitive bidding, the policy embodied in

          7  GML 103 as paramount.

          8                 Thus, while we can and do require the

          9  purchase of environmentally preferable products and

         10  services by defining limited descriptions in our

         11  specifications, we cannot do that in a vacuum.

         12  Rather, we must ensure that on an item by item basis

         13  we continue to further the goals of the State

         14  Procurement Law. As we recognized when Local Law 30

         15  of 2003 on Energy Star was adopted, we do that by

         16  seeking bids from at least six purchasers, we have

         17  to have at least six purchasers in the marketplace,

         18  given the sheer size of our contracts going out to a

         19  smaller range of competitors could well run afoul of

         20  GML 103.  Further, any approach that we take has to

         21  enable agencies to implement the State mandated

         22  goals of competitive bidding.

         23                 As we work with you to define

         24  suitable standards and the mechanisms to oversee

         25  compliance, we also caution that while we can look
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          2  to Federal and New York State standards, which we

          3  frequently do incorporate into our purchasing

          4  instructions, there are significant legal and policy

          5  considerations that militate against trying to link

          6  City mandates to legislation or policy from other

          7  countries, jurisdictions or private entities, even

          8  as those external provisions will evolve and change.

          9                 There are two additional issues that

         10  I would like to mention.  The first has to do with

         11  the language in these bills that relates to the

         12  activities of City vendors, "in fulfillment of their

         13  contracts."  As I explained earlier, our vendors

         14  span an extraordinary array of types, organizational

         15  sizes, and skill levels.  Apart from the difficulty

         16  of defining just what we mean by activities that are

         17  or are not in fulfillment of contracts, the

         18  Administrative requirements that are contemplated by

         19  these bills are quite substantial, especially

         20  relative to the small size of many of our awards.

         21  As drafted they could discourage many of our smaller

         22  not- for- profits, emerging local businesses and

         23  entrepreneurs with which we currently do business

         24  from competing, or they could make it too hard for

         25  those vendors to win contracts in the future.
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          2                 We must bear that in mind in many

          3  areas despite our constant efforts to streamline our

          4  process and conduct outreach.  The City continues to

          5  have difficulty in attracting procurement partners.

          6  We can and do use detailed environmental procurement

          7  specifications in many of our solicitations,

          8  especially with larger goods or construction

          9  contracts where those specs are competitive, are

         10  consistent with competitive bidding rules.

         11                 We can work with you to identify

         12  additional categories of services where

         13  specifications can be tightened. Although, a few of

         14  the areas that are covered by the bills may be

         15  impractical for such measures.  For example, State

         16  Law requires us to open most of our procurements to

         17  the entire competitive world.  We cannot preclude

         18  competitors who rent their spaces, their places of

         19  business, and that does include many of our major

         20  vendors, even though as tenants they have little

         21  control over the nature of the power that their

         22  respective landlords supply.

         23                 Another related issue has to do with

         24  the applications of these bills to the City's

         25  smaller purchases. Contracts at or below $100,000
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          2  have the small purchase rules, which are designed to

          3  yield a very fast tracked process, one that we try

          4  as often as possible to use email, or fax, or other

          5  paperless, or simple communication forms.  Those

          6  solicitations are generally designed to be, to

          7  result in selections that are based solely on low

          8  price.  My office vigorously oversees the agency

          9  compliance with the small purchase rules, and works

         10  to assist agencies to improve green purchasing at

         11  that dollar level.

         12                 At the same time, as the Council will

         13  recall, since we began implementing the Mayor's

         14  Executive Order 36 of 2003, we have expanded

         15  opportunities in the small purchase universe for

         16  small businesses, minority and women- owned

         17  businesses to compete for these awards.  Many of

         18  those companies are already funding our procedures

         19  daunting.  And so we want to be sure that the goal

         20  of any new administrative tracking requirement is

         21  balanced with other important goals such as reducing

         22  barriers to entry.  Even above the small purchase

         23  limit, we do have robust competition from small

         24  businesses and MWBEs for our higher dollar

         25  contracts, certainly up to the level of at least a
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          2  million dollars.  About 25 percent of the dollar

          3  value of construction is in that area, about 35

          4  percent of goods, and about 25 percent of other

          5  services contracts are in that $1 million or less

          6  area.

          7                 Green purchasing can be built into

          8  all levels of our procurement thinking, but the

          9  tools that we use need to be flexible.  At the lower

         10  dollar volumes, we must remain sensitive to the

         11  needs and capabilities of our smaller business

         12  partners, not only to preserve the competitive

         13  environment, but even more importantly in

         14  recognition of the critical role that these smaller

         15  entities play in our economy as employers,

         16  taxpayers, and catalyst for growth.

         17                 I appreciate your patience this

         18  morning with this lengthy testimony, and even more

         19  so, we appreciate your commitment to our shared goal

         20  of sustainability.  Because of the complex web of

         21  legal provisions that governs our procurement, we

         22  believe that the oversight and policy compliance for

         23  green purchasing needs to be lodged squarely within

         24  the procurement oversight system.  That will ensure

         25  that the ACCOs and our other City personnel who are
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          2  involved in these decisions know how to comply with

          3  the standards without running afoul of the many

          4  other mandates that govern their conduct.

          5                 As you know, the Charter makes the

          6  Mayor unequivocally accountable for procurement.

          7  The Charter requires the Mayor's express approval,

          8  in one manner or another, of virtually all

          9  procurements other than competitive bids, which are

         10  largely governed by State law.  Each year, over

         11  2,000 procurement decisions are individually

         12  reviewed by my office on behalf of the Mayor.  A few

         13  require express sign- off by the Deputy Mayor.  Even

         14  in the areas that we delegate to the agencies so

         15  that the agencies can conduct the  approval for the

         16  Mayor, my office spot checks, trouble- shoots and

         17  reviews performance indicators to ensure that any

         18  delegation of Mayoral approval is properly

         19  exercised.

         20                 A further consideration in developing

         21  any local legislation relating to procurement is

         22  that we must ensure that the legislation does not

         23  curtail the powers of the Mayor, or any other

         24  elected official without a referendum in violation

         25  of the restrictions that are contained in State Law
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          2  and the City Charter.  But we are here today to make

          3  it clear that Mayor Bloomberg shares the goal of

          4  today's proposed bills and that we are willing to

          5  work with you to determine how best to frame the

          6  goals.  We hope to do that in a way, of course, that

          7  is consistent with applicable law.  But we would

          8  like to keep the resulting administrative burden

          9  both on our vendors and on City agencies to a

         10  minimum.

         11                 At the end of the day, what we hope

         12  to achieve is much broader than the establishment of

         13  a new office or title within our purchasing offices.

         14    We seek to integrated the principals of

         15  sustainability into all procurement decision making

         16  much as our staff is now required to balance such

         17  important considerations as the full and fair

         18  opportunity for all vendors to compete, and the need

         19  to obtain high quality and low prices in our

         20  purchases.  We welcome you joining us in this

         21  effort, and we are all available today to answer

         22  questions.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         25  Thank you so much for your comprehensive testimony.
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          2  Surely, there is a great commitment to

          3  sustainability on behalf of the Administration as

          4  evidence by your comprehensive testimony.  What I

          5  would like to do, as I indicated, I am going to call

          6  upon the sponsors of some of the, or the prime

          7  sponsors of some of the bills that we have before us

          8  today, to make brief statements.

          9                 As I indicated I was going to call

         10  on, in the order that they came here, I am first

         11  going to call upon Domenic Recchia to speak on

         12  Intro. 545, but before Domenic actually grabs the

         13  microphone, I am just going to recognize the

         14  presence of Eva Moskowitz who has joined us.  She

         15  will also be sharing a statement with us on Intro.

         16  552.  We are also joined by Council Member Jennings

         17  from Queens.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Chairman,

         19  thank you for recognizing me, I was in a Public

         20  Safety Committee that was going on simultaneously,

         21  so please excuse my lateness.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You bet, thank

         23  you.  And so what we will have, we will have Council

         24  Member Recchia who will offer a brief statement on

         25  Intro. 545.  Council Member Quinn who will speak

                                                            44

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  briefly on Intro. 544, and Council Member Moskowitz

          3  who will give a statement on Intro. 552.

          4                 Council Member Recchia.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Yes, good

          6  morning, Mr. Chair, and I appreciate you giving me

          7  the opportunity to say a few words on Intro. 545.

          8  Increasing the amount of our waste that is recycled

          9  has been a longstanding goal of the City.  Recycling

         10  is not only crucial to improving the environment, it

         11  is absolutely necessary in order to address the

         12  City's ever- growing waste management problems.

         13                 As you know, the City is presently

         14  trying to implement a Waste Management Program

         15  throughout New York City with these waste transfer

         16  stations.  For many years in my district, we had an

         17  incinerator that burned, and now they want to put a

         18  waste transfer station in my district.  I understand

         19  that every area must take care of its own garbage,

         20  but when I hear people crying out all over the City

         21  that they don't want it in their backyard, I asked

         22  them the question, why for so many years do we have

         23  an incinerator that burned in my district and not in

         24  yours?  And why did we have to deal with this?

         25                 But when I sat back and looked at the
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          2  overall plan there is one major problem here, and

          3  that is we are not doing enough to recycle in the

          4  City.  We are not doing enough to address the real

          5  problem of garbage, and that is what alternative

          6  methods are there?  We are not putting enough

          7  investments into these area, and that is why I am

          8  the sponsor of Intro. 545.  New York City must use

          9  its tremendous procurement power to lead the way in

         10  the use of recycled materials.  This legislation

         11  will take a big step in that direction by requiring

         12  all City agencies to purchase products that meet

         13  Federal Guidelines for the minimal amount of

         14  recycled materials in these products.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         17  Council Member Recchia.  I appreciate your statement

         18  and your excellent work on this legislation.

         19                 Council Member Quinn.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.  I

         21  also want to apologize; I was across the street

         22  voting in the Government Operations Committee, way

         23  too much going on.  And also, I may not be able to

         24  stay for the rest of the hearing because I have

         25  another conflict, so I want to apologize in advance.
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          2                 And just say, you know, briefly, I

          3  want to thank you, Mr. Chair, for moving these

          4  pieces of legislation so quickly, and for being so

          5  supportive of the important content and goal of

          6  these bills, which is really as Council Member

          7  Recchia referenced doing our part to promote the

          8  environment through the use of recyclable and green,

          9  and environmentally sensitive products.

         10                 You know I think the basic concept on

         11  the piece of legislation that I am the prime sponsor

         12  of, is that in government we have to lead through

         13  example.  And that we cannot really kind of wag our

         14  finger at the rest of the world and say, why aren't

         15  you doing this, why aren't you doing that, why are

         16  you doing this, if we are not doing the right thing

         17  ourselves.

         18                 And you know the pocketbook, so- to-

         19  speak, of the City of New York is one of the biggest

         20  in the country, probably the world.  And the degree

         21  to which we as a City invest in buying green

         22  products when they are available, we not only set a

         23  good example, and that isn't just an example that

         24  will translate to our citizens, and particularly the

         25  kids in our City, it is an example because we are
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          2  New York that will be seen around the country and

          3  the world.  But also given how much we buy, it is in

          4  reality, an example that will drive the market, and

          5  I think make environmentally green products more

          6  available and more out there, because that is

          7  certainly a challenge today that they are not easy

          8  enough for the average person to purchase.

          9                 So thank you for having this hearing,

         10  and I look forward to working with the

         11  Administration on these pieces of legislation, and

         12  moving forward to the day that they become the law

         13  of the City.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         16  Council Member Quinn.  Council Member Moskowitz.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Chris said

         18  everything I was going to say, so that leads to

         19  brevity.  But I do want to thank you, Mr. Chair, for

         20  all the work that you and the staff have put into

         21  these bills and this issue, it has been one of the

         22  most active Committees and our City is better for

         23  it.  And I thank you.

         24                 The bill that I am the prime sponsor

         25  on is affectionately nicknamed, "Greening Our
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          2  Cleaning," and the idea for the bill came partly out

          3  of my visiting school buildings. Probably schools

          4  are the largest pocket of City- owned buildings,

          5  there are 1,356 schools.  And if you walk into any

          6  lunchroom, you will be overwhelmed by the fumes of

          7  the toxic cleaning products. And I think it is

          8  important to make progress on this issue,

          9  particularly in schools, but in all of City- owned

         10  buildings.

         11                 So I am very, very glad that we are

         12  having this hearing, and I thank you again, Mr.

         13  Chair for all of your support and help on this

         14  important matter.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         17  Council Member Moskowitz.  I would like to thank the

         18  three of you for your leadership on the bills that

         19  you have put forward.  Council Member DeBlasio also

         20  has a bill here, could not be with us today, and of

         21  course, my own bill.  And Council Member Vallone, as

         22  well, who is right next door chairing the Public

         23  Safety hearing.  So, thank you all very much, thank

         24  you for your leadership, and I am going to take a

         25  crack at these guys, okay, here we go.
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          2                 Okay, who is responsible for making

          3  sure that the City's existing environmental

          4  purchasing laws and policies on recycled materials,

          5  Energy Star, alternative fuel vehicles, and re-

          6  refined motor oil are enforced at the agency level?

          7  Who can best speak to that?

          8                 MS. SIMPSON:  Procurement oversight

          9  is conducted largely through my office, the Mayor's

         10  Office of Construction, I am sorry, the Mayor's

         11  Office of Contract Services, which now includes the

         12  former Mayor's Office of Construction.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I have a

         14  follow- up on, how many DCAS staff are dedicated

         15  totally to environmental purchasing, exclusively

         16  dedicated to environmental purchasing, if there are

         17  DCAS staff that are dedicated exclusively to that?

         18                 MS. SIMPSON:  We can certainly get

         19  you the information.  Do you want to speak to that?

         20                 DR. LEDESMA- GARRIDO:  Yes, we have

         21  two full- time positions.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  If you could

         23  speak right into the mic, that would be great.

         24                 DR. LEDESMA- GARRIDO:  Yes, we have

         25  two full- time positions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Two full- time?

          3                 DR. LEDESMA- GARRIDO:  Yes, dedicated

          4  to environmentally - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  Are they

          6  full- time positions that are currently filled, or

          7  are you seeking to hiring them, or are they - -

          8                 DR. LEDESMA- GARRIDO:  We are seeking

          9  to hire them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So you are

         11  seeking to hiring them now.

         12                 DR. LEDESMA- GARRIDO:  Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So once they

         14  are on board you will have two.

         15                 DR. LEDESMA- GARRIDO:  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So now you

         17  don't have anyone dedicated right now at this

         18  moment, exclusively to environmental purchasing?

         19                 DR. LEDESMA- GARRIDO:  For

         20  environmental purchasing, what we do is the

         21  environmental group assist the purchasing

         22  professionals in identifying the products and

         23  updating the specs so that it will reflect the EP

         24  product requirements.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, thank
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          2  you.  I had a whole host of questions, but your

          3  testimony was so comprehensive, you answered a lot

          4  of the things that we wanted to ask.

          5                 Okay, Section 6- 122C of the City

          6  Administrative Code requires DCAS to establish

          7  standards for the minimal recycled content of non-

          8  paper products purchased by the City. Has DCAS

          9  created these standards yet?

         10                 MS. SIMPSON:  I think that Jennifer

         11  Blum from the Department of Citywide Administrative

         12  Services can speak to this question.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  That is quite

         14  all right. Sergeant, if we could have a chair for

         15  Jennifer, or maybe she could, okay, Jennifer.

         16                 MS. BLUM:  Hi.  What we think you are

         17  referring to is 16- 322C of the Administrative Code,

         18  because 6- 122C does not exist.  Am I correct?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Staff mistake

         20  on our part.

         21                 MS. BLUM:  It is a kind of a large

         22  typo.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         24                 MS. BLUM:  We do not, we have not

         25  done that by regulation, but we do it by practice.
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          2  It is in the specifications, we allow for the 5

          3  percent price preference as required.  So, no, we

          4  did not promulgate rules, but we do it in practice

          5  in product specification.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          7  thank you.

          8                 MS. BLUM:  You are welcome.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  DCAS's

         10  2003 Report on Environmental Procurement lists 19

         11  non- paper products with recycled content purchased

         12  by the City.  Are there non- paper products with

         13  recycled content that the City purchases, or other

         14  non- paper products with recycled content that the

         15  City purchases?

         16                 MS. BLUM:  There may be, but they

         17  were not through DCAS's requirement contracts.  They

         18  were not purchased by DCAS. Agencies might be

         19  purchasing environmentally preferable products on

         20  their own.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         22                 MS. BLUM:  You are welcome.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  What factors

         24  does the City currently use in selecting the

         25  custodial products that will be used in the City's
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          2  buildings, such as in schools, and does the City

          3  currently make any effort to make sure that it is

          4  purchasing safer, more environmentally- friendly

          5  cleaning products?

          6                 MS. BLUM:  I cannot speak to the

          7  schools; we don't purchase cleaning products for the

          8  schools.  I can, in fact, speak specifically to the

          9  DCAS Managed Buildings.  We have manufacturer

         10  safety, data sheets available for all products used

         11  in our buildings as required.  And, in fact, the

         12  cleaning personnel are trained to the products that

         13  are available to them.

         14                 In addition, we make administrative

         15  decisions as required to do things like when we are

         16  stripping wax, it happens after hours, it does not

         17  happen while there are employees, large number of

         18  employees on site.  So we make administrative

         19  decisions all the time to use products when it is

         20  the safest for people, and we go out of our way to

         21  train those employees who are using products

         22  specifically to the products that are available to

         23  them.

         24                 MS. SIMPSON:  Mr. Chairman, if I

         25  could supplement, a significant portion of the
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          2  services, the cleaning that City agencies use are

          3  done as outside procurements, they go to vendors.

          4  And this was an area that I did specifically mention

          5  in my testimony, a significant amount of that

          6  business goes to New York State Industries for the

          7  Disabled.  That is obviously a major vendors that is

          8  somebody that we will want to be sitting down and

          9  talking with as we discuss these bills.

         10                 So, again, I don't have all the

         11  answers on what NYSER does, but that is certainly

         12  something that we can look into as we look at these

         13  bills.  Similarly, there are lots of other vendors

         14  in that area, and we need to determine how those

         15  specs are written.  They will be varied agency to

         16  agency because that is not a centralized area of

         17  purchasing.  You are going to find janitorial and

         18  cleaning contracts in virtually every agency of the

         19  City.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         21  thank you. Pursuant to Local Law 30 of 2003 on

         22  Energy Star Purchasing, the Bloomberg Administration

         23  was supposed to have provided us with the report on

         24  implementation of the law by May 2004.  By November

         25  when we still had not received the report, we had to
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          2  request it. In the end, in lieu of an actual report,

          3  we received a two- page letter.  And the question

          4  is, why was this so late?

          5                 MS. SIMPSON:  It was late, as I

          6  explained in signing the letter, and I am the

          7  signatory on the letter, through omission, and we

          8  apologized for that lateness.  We are working to

          9  respond to the follow- up letter that we received

         10  last month, and we hope to have you a comprehensive

         11  response later this week.

         12                 The basic issue that has made it

         13  difficult is not so much the documentation or the

         14  policy, as my colleague, Ms. Blum says, we have

         15  incorporated the terms into specs.  But because the

         16  bill, or the Local Law took effect midway through

         17  procurement cycles, we had very many requirements

         18  contracts and other large purchases that were

         19  already made without the inclusion of those specs.

         20  And so it is difficult for us to document in each

         21  category how many of the products fit within the

         22  law's definition.  In some cases, for example, air

         23  conditioning, virtually all the products are Energy

         24  Star because the entire industry has moved to that

         25  rating system.  In other categories where our spec
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          2  did not delineate that and where we are still

          3  purchasing off a contract that is several years old,

          4  it is much harder for us to document what we have

          5  purchased.  I can promise, obviously, because the

          6  procurement cycle turns over regularly by the time

          7  we continue to make reports under this law from year

          8  to year, the level of data will be a richer, more

          9  developed, and more detailed.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.  I

         11  have one last question, before I turn it over to

         12  Council Member Recchia, and then ultimately to Eva,

         13  who has questions as well.

         14                 Given the difficulty you just

         15  outlined in implementing this one piece of

         16  legislation, do you think there is value in

         17  centralizing data collection and implementation of

         18  laws like Energy Star and those we are considering

         19  today?  I know you made a brief reference in your

         20  statement, you know, to that. Could you just answer

         21  that?

         22                 MS. SIMPSON:  We have to be cognizant

         23  of the structure of the procurement system itself.

         24  For some purposes, the procurement system is

         25  centralized, and for other purposes, the Charter
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          2  keeps that system deliberately decentralized.  We

          3  are aware, and I think I have testified on a number

          4  of occasions at the Contracts Committee, we are

          5  aware of a fairly significant deficiency in the

          6  City's ability to track procurement workflow. And

          7  that would include this issue and a host of others.

          8  My office, as I have explained to the Contracts

          9  Committee, we are in the process right now of

         10  designing, and we hope to expeditiously build, in

         11  effect, a completely, a much more enhanced and

         12  completely new procurement work flow tracking system

         13  that will give us the ability going forward to

         14  produce a lot more categories of data than we

         15  currently can.

         16                 Obviously, you know, we have

         17  identified the collection of data as an area that we

         18  would like to improve the process of doing that when

         19  you have 34 Mayoral agencies purchasing separately

         20  on, and using computer systems that are not all

         21  compatible.  It is an extraordinary, complicated

         22  task.  Our current timetable will have a significant

         23  portion of that design, hopefully ready, and built

         24  out within a year.  But it is a long term project.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,
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          2  thank you.  I recognize Council Member Recchia for

          3  questions.  Domenic, I just have to step out for a

          4  few minutes, so you have the Chair as well.  Okay, I

          5  will be right back.  Council Member Recchia, to be

          6  followed by Council Member Moskowitz.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON RECCHIA:  I don't

          8  know if you are lucky or if you are not.  Let me

          9  start off with a few questions.

         10                 What kind of burden will 545 be on

         11  your Department, overseeing and implementing exactly

         12  what we are trying to do here?  I think from the

         13  standpoint of the Mayor's Office and our oversight

         14  role, the bills are not different from bill to bill,

         15  the issue is that we are charged with ensuring that

         16  the City's agencies comply with a host of mandates.

         17  And in the procurement world, much as perhaps you

         18  are familiar with in the taxation arena, the law

         19  starts at the State level.  The vast majority of our

         20  mandates and the constraints that apply to what we

         21  can do as a City, are provisions that stem from very

         22  narrowly drawn regulations at the State level.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON RECCHIA:  So is

         24  this going to be a bigger burden, not be a burden,

         25  my question was not answered.
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          2                 MS. SIMPSON:  Well what I am trying

          3  to say is that in some cases, and again, my

          4  testimony sort of goes through this in some greater

          5  detail, we have to balance a regulation that, for

          6  example, if there is a specific green procurement

          7  standard, we can only implement that standard if we

          8  can do so within the framework of existing State

          9  rules that require us for most categories of what we

         10  call standardized services or goods to use

         11  competitive sealed bid and to select on the basis of

         12  low price. We are able to control the specifications

         13  to the degree that we must still maintain within

         14  each item a very broad array of competitors.  We are

         15  not able to use specifications to restrict the

         16  number of competitors down to where it is one or

         17  two.

         18                 So to describe the burden, again, it

         19  is partly a question of, to start with, are we able

         20  to implement a standard for every procurement, the

         21  answer is probably not.  We cannot have a one- size

         22  fits all approach.  It has to be calibrated so that

         23  it deals with all the different products and service

         24  areas separately.  Which is basically what my office

         25  does with all of the compliance issues that we look
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          2  at with agencies, and we work with them, and we work

          3  with the procurement training institute to make sure

          4  that we have courses, so that the people who make

          5  these decisions can implement them.

          6                 I don't want to quantify the burden

          7  because basically, what I am saying is it is one

          8  procurement decision that is being made for each

          9  product or service.  It is simply the case that we

         10  have to within that decision balance a multiplicity

         11  of factors, typically guided by State Law.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON RECCHIA:  And, you

         13  know, some of these laws that we here today, the

         14  only reason that they are being introduced is

         15  because certain State laws and Federal Laws are not

         16  being followed out the way they really should.

         17                 MS. SIMPSON:  As I tried - -

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON RECCHIA:  Because,

         19  you know, especially with the mandatory guidelines

         20  of the minimum, of covered materials of content,

         21  purchase in each item.  I mean if we were following

         22  this, we would not have to be here today.

         23                 MS. SIMPSON:  One of the ironies in

         24  the procurement world, and you know, welcome to our

         25  own little form of purgatory, one of the ironies
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          2  here is that the State Law allows State purchasing,

          3  OGS, which is the primary purchasing agency for the

          4  State a vastly wider amount of discretion than it

          5  allows us.  Things that the federal government can

          6  do in its procurements, things that they can do on

          7  the construction side, things that they can do in

          8  purchasing goods, things that the State does on the

          9  construction side.  And it is not limited to

         10  environmental, it would be the same thing if you

         11  were talking about some of the laws that the State,

         12  some of the ways that the State procures

         13  construction with respect to labor policy, with

         14  respect to EEO policy.  There are any number of

         15  areas where the State has almost unfetter discretion

         16  to design sensible purchasing policies and where the

         17  State law applies to the City in a way that

         18  handcuffs us.

         19                 And again, we don't believe that

         20  these bills fall into an area that will make the

         21  goal that we share impossible to achieve.  We simply

         22  are pointing out that we need to work with you sort

         23  of topic by topic, looking at the State law mandates

         24  and creating a mechanism that will allow us to serve

         25  all the masters we then have to serve, including the
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          2  general Municipal law.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON RECCHIA:  Well we

          4  look forward to working with you.  And I want to

          5  bring up one other issue, you have oversight over

          6  the Parks Department?

          7                 MS. SIMPSON:  The purchasing of all

          8  Departments, yes.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON RECCHIA:  Because

         10  I will tell you right now, some of the products that

         11  they use in these playgrounds and in the toilet and

         12  the bathrooms are just ridiculous.  I mean the

         13  odors, it knocks you out.  People cannot go in there

         14  for a day, after they clean.  But we have to use,

         15  you know, I understand what my colleague, and I will

         16  leave it up to Eva Moskowitz to go into the school

         17  issue with the kind of cleaning materials that they

         18  use.  But I agree with her, you know  It is not only

         19  there, it is suing the parks, it is the schools, and

         20  everything else.

         21                 I don't have any other further

         22  questions, and I call on my colleague, Eva

         23  Moskowitz.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

         25    Yes, as I mentioned before, kids often complain of
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          2  nausea, and you cannot walk into a school lunchroom

          3  and miss the overpowering smell of cleaning

          4  products.

          5                 I wanted to ask you about a comment

          6  that was made on March 12th, 2004 by Marty

          7  Oestreicher who does, among other things the

          8  procurement.  He stated that with the assistance of

          9  the healthy schools network, the DOE had begun to

         10  review custodial cleaning products used in the

         11  schools.  He further stated that there was, he was

         12  going to begin a pilot project last fall that would

         13  quote test the cost in operational effectiveness of

         14  utilizing only organic products to clean our

         15  schools, and then that the DOE would then review how

         16  successful this pilot project was, and if it was

         17  successful, expand it.

         18                 Do you know anything about the status

         19  of that pilot project?

         20                 MS. SIMPSON:  I do know from

         21  discussions with DOE that they have developed

         22  comparative data on some of the costs involved with

         23  cleaning products.  I don't know specifics on the

         24  pilot project.  I must indicate again, this is a

         25  very complicated little world here.  The Department
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          2  of Education's procurement is not under the PPB

          3  Rules or City regulation.  It actually continues to

          4  operate, even though it is now a City agency, it

          5  continues to operate under State procurement

          6  regulations.  So we can certainly get an update to

          7  you, and I would be happy to ensure that an update

          8  on that pilot project is forwarded to the Committee.

          9    But in my oversight capacity, I don't have the

         10  Department of Education.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.  I

         12  mean I find this a little odd in the sense that

         13  obviously, one of the purposes of Mayoral control

         14  was, at least, to have agencies in communications.

         15  So this Environmentally Preferable Procurement and

         16  Waste Prevention annual report does  nothing about

         17  the Department of Education?

         18                 MS. SIMPSON:  I think that it varies

         19  from,--  I am sorry, one second.  Okay, I have just

         20  been told that DOE is hear and can join us at the

         21  panel, and can perhaps provide some information for

         22  you.  So we will bring up another chair, and we will

         23  bring DOE to the microphone.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Great.

         25                 MS. SIMPSON:  But let me, at least
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          2  for a moment, say that one of the issues, and I

          3  think the report does describe which agencies are

          4  covered.  The DCAS report does include some

          5  purchases that DCAS makes for agencies such as

          6  school construction, HHC.  I am not certain whether,

          7  I don't believe that DCAS purchases this type of

          8  goods for the Department of Education, I believe Ed

          9  does that on their own.

         10                 But I have just been told that it is

         11  just fuel that DCAS does purchase for DOE.  Most of

         12  the purchasing for DOE is independent by DOE.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  And why do

         14  you review for fuel and no other products?

         15                 MS. SIMPSON:  Again, there are

         16  requirement contracts and I think generally

         17  sometimes the so- called non mayoral from a

         18  procurement standpoint, the non- mayoral agencies

         19  sometimes find it extraordinarily beneficial to buy

         20  off of the requirement contracts because they get

         21  volume discounts, and you know we were able to do

         22  that, and we have an accelerated procurement method

         23  that we are allowed to use for the purchase of fuel,

         24  which again makes it a very efficient system.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Let me ask

                                                            66

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  you, is there any law that prevents you from

          3  reviewing the environmentally sound nature of the

          4  purchasing done by the Department of Education?

          5                 MS. SIMPSON:  In terms of my office

          6  reviewing it?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Correct.

          8                 MS. SIMPSON:  I would have to ask the

          9  Law Department exactly how the legislation, you

         10  know, forming the Department of Education reads.

         11                 I do want to correct one perhaps

         12  misimpression that I gave, we do communicate.  We

         13  speak with and we, you know, we have representatives

         14  from the Department of Education involved in lots of

         15  our procurement meetings on policy issues, such as

         16  this one, where we try to work together.  It is

         17  simply the case that when the Legislature, State

         18  Legislature transferred procurement, transferred the

         19  Department of Education to the City as a Mayoral

         20  control, they specifically preserved an separate

         21  oversight of procurement.  And so procurement was

         22  simply left in its former incarnation and not moved

         23  over.

         24                 But my office does work collegially

         25  with Department of Ed on a lot of these issues.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.  I

          3  know that the Chair has many other witnesses.  I

          4  would just say in closing, that I really think we

          5  need an update on this pilot project to know whether

          6  what the results were, and a list is not the same as

          7  the actual pilot project.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          9  thank you.  Thank you to my colleagues for your

         10  great leadership, and thanks to all the members of

         11  the Administration who came here to testify.  We

         12  appreciate your comprehensive testimony and your

         13  diligent efforts on behalf of a sustainable and

         14  green New York.  Thank you, thank you.  We know

         15  where to find you, okay.

         16                 And I am going to announce the next

         17  panel.  We have three panelists, Robert Elliot, the

         18  Mayor of Croton on Hudson.  Happy to have you with

         19  us, Mayor Elliot.  Deidre Imus, of the Imus

         20  Environmental Center for Pediatric Oncology.  And

         21  Scot Case, of New American Dream.  And so the

         22  Elliot, Imus, Case panel will be followed by Steve

         23  Mitnick, you will be our next witness.

         24                 Thank you, thank you, Mayor Elliot,

         25  Ms. Imus, Mr. Case, a pleasure to have you with us
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          2  here today.  Thank you for your patience.  And

          3  because we have so many witnesses and we are going

          4  to kind of move right along, Counsel to the

          5  Committee, Donna De Costanzo will administer the

          6  oath, and then in whichever order you wish, you can

          7  state your names for the record and proceed with

          8  your testimony.  We thank you very much for being

          9  here.  Donna.

         10                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         11  right hand? In the testimony that you are about to

         12  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         13  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         14                 ALL: Yes.

         15                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I just want to

         17  note for the record that the Mayor has gracefully

         18  deferred to Ms. Imus.  I think that was a good move,

         19  Mr. Mayor.  And so, Ms. Imus, it is a pleasure to

         20  have you with us today, thank you for your interest.

         21  And please state your name for the record, and

         22  proceed with your good testimony.

         23                 Okay, you have to make it so that the

         24  light goes out.

         25                 MS. IMUS:  Okay.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, and speak

          3  right into the microphone just like you are doing.

          4                 MS. IMUS:  Thank you.  My name is

          5  Deidre Imus. Good morning.  I am Deidre Imus,

          6  founder, and director of the Deidre Imus

          7  Environmental Center for Pediatric Oncology at

          8  Hackensack University Medical Center.  A not- for-

          9  profit 501- C- 3 Corporation.

         10                 Our Environmental Center's mission

         11  since 2001 has been to identify and control, and

         12  ultimately prevent the environmental factors that

         13  may cause adult and especially pediatric cancers.

         14  One of the many ways we have done this is by

         15  establishing our, "Greening the Cleaning Program."

         16   "Greening the Cleaning" means eliminating, where

         17  possible, all cleaning agents and chemical

         18  substances whose components include toxic materials

         19  and replacing them with environmentally- friendly,

         20  high quality, non- toxic cleaning agents.  Our

         21  comprehensive program guides institutions in

         22  establishing non- toxic cleaning programs from

         23  education to implementation.  "Greening the

         24  Cleaning" is now being introduced to businesses and

         25  schools throughout the country.
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          2                 In the New York Metropolitan area,

          3  this includes the New York Housing Authority, Jacobi

          4  Medical Center, Newark Airport, half a dozen

          5  schools, and dozen of other places in New York City.

          6    In short, more than 40 health care facilities and

          7  many businesses have implemented the "Greening the

          8  Cleaning" program since 2001 with reported savings

          9  of 3 to 75 percent in cleaning costs.

         10                 There are five main reasons clients

         11  choose our program: Toxicity reduction, cost

         12  reduction, space reduction. The products work as

         13  well, if not better than the leading brands, and we

         14  do all the work for you.  When the Environmental

         15  Center is profitable, after tax profits will go

         16  towards research for the environment and cancer-

         17  related subjects, or projects like the Imus Range

         18  that deal with children with cancer and other

         19  illnesses.

         20                 Costs are not the only thing saved by

         21  using non toxic cleaners.  The USEPA states that

         22  indoors air quality is often five times worse than

         23  outdoors, and toxic cleaning products can contribute

         24  significantly to this figure.  New York's most

         25  vulnerable citizens are children who pound for pound
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          2  of body take in more air, food, and water than

          3  adults.  Unfortunately, this means proportionately

          4  our children absorb more toxins than adults.

          5                 What is more, the USEPA reports that

          6  schools are four times more densely populated than

          7  office buildings.  This presents us with a huge

          8  responsibility and an important opportunity to do

          9  more for our children.  After all, children are our

         10  most precious natural resource.

         11                 Governor George Pataki asked me to

         12  attend this, his most recent State of the State

         13  Address, and in introducing me announced that

         14  inspired by our "Greening the Cleaning" program he

         15  was issuing an Executive Order requiring all State

         16  agencies and authorities to begin using non- toxic

         17  cleaning products that are free of harmful

         18  chemicals.  We are also presently working with the

         19  Governor to help submit legislation requiring all

         20  schools in the State, public and private, to do the

         21  same.

         22                 This is why we strongly support

         23  Intros. 534, 536, 544, 545, 546, and 552.  Making

         24  these commitments to the City, to its workers, and

         25  especially to its children will ensure a healthier

                                                            72

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  environment for all of us.

          3                 Intro. 552, known as the "Greening

          4  Our Cleaning Act" will specifically make a positive

          5  and lasting impact on all who work and learn in our

          6  City's public buildings.  As mentioned in this

          7  package of Intros, the safety of workers and

          8  waterways alike are of utmost importance.  With our

          9   "Greening the Cleaning" program 98,800 pounds of

         10  toxins have been eliminated from the environment and

         11  no known work- related injuries have occurred while

         12  using our products.  In short, switching to safer,

         13  cleaning products using the least level of toxicity

         14  is one of the simplest, most cost effective steps

         15  New York City can take to make our buildings safer

         16  for everyone.  We look forward to working with you

         17  to pass today's package of bills, especially 552.

         18                 If there is anything that we can do

         19  to provide additional support for more information

         20  about "Greening the Cleaning" please call us at the

         21  Environmental Center, and we also have a web site,

         22  dienviro.com.  And again, we are a not for profit

         23  organization that can supply the City with non-

         24  toxic cleaning supplies.

         25                 Thank you for the opportunity to
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          2  share this information with you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you so

          4  much.  Thank you so much for your statement and for

          5  your work.  What we will do is we will hear the

          6  testimony of the other two panelists, and then I

          7  will return to all of you for questions.  So thank

          8  you very much.

          9                 Mayor Elliot, a pleasure to have you

         10  here with us, again.  So, I am pleased to hear your

         11  good statement.

         12                 MAYOR ELLIOT:  Mr. Chairman and

         13  members of the Committee, for the record, I am Bob

         14  Elliot, the Mayor of Croton on Hudson.

         15                 Thank you for the opportunity to come

         16  before you today and speak in support of the six

         17  laws before you, and in particular Introductory

         18  Local Law No. 546.  Following the purchase of wind

         19  power for our 29 percent of our usage, two years ago

         20  our community, Croton- on- Hudson  founded a New

         21  York State Municipal Wind Buyers Group, with a goal

         22  of creating Municipal demand for building new wind

         23  farms in New York State and educating our public on

         24  the desirability and availability of renewable

         25  energy.  This effort has since received the green

                                                            74

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  power leadership award from the US Environmental

          3  Protection Agency, and the US Department of Energy.

          4                 As you may know, New York State

          5  currently has 48 megawatts of wind energy being

          6  generated at three Upstate Wind Farms.  But NYSERDA

          7  studies have found that the New York State

          8  conservatively has wind resources for 10,000

          9  megawatts, enough to generate 20 percent of the

         10  State's electric needs, which are slightly more than

         11  the 18 percent of the State's electricity that is

         12  currently being generated by hydropower.

         13                 Thirty- six, and actually the number

         14  is now growing, New York Municipalities are now

         15  purchasing wind power for between 10 percent and 100

         16  percent of their Municipal electric needs.  Their

         17  combined purchase of 16,735,000 kilowatt of wind

         18  power eliminates carbon- dioxide emissions of 18

         19  million pounds per year, or the environmental

         20  equivalent of planting 1.2 million trees.

         21                 The proposal before you today would

         22  have New York City government purchase 10 percent of

         23  its electric usage some 500 million kilowatts from

         24  renewable energy sources and then scaling up from

         25  there.  Just purchasing 10 percent of the City's
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          2  Municipal electric needs from wind energy would

          3  reduce CO2 emissions by 550 million pounds per year,

          4  or the equivalent to planting over 37 million trees.

          5    This dramatic environmental benefit could be

          6  achieved through a standard, renewable energy

          7  purchase for less than a 1 percent increase in the

          8  City's electric budget.

          9                 There is, however, an approach that

         10  can achieve the same outcome, and it is estimated

         11  over the long term save taxpayers money.  Last

         12  century, New York State invested in hydropower, like

         13  wind, hydropower is pollution and fuel free. When

         14  our society invested in the early and mid- 1900s in

         15  hydro, initially cost a bit more than conventional

         16  power sources.  But while conventional power prices

         17  increased while as fuel cost rose, hydro's fixed

         18  price has now resulted in its costing one half to

         19  one- third of the price of other sources of

         20  electricity.

         21                 Wind energy is now in that same

         22  position.  While it currently cost a bit more than

         23  other polluting power sources, in the long run wind

         24  energy's fixed price will be a more economical

         25  investment than continuing our reliance on fossil
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          2  fuels and foreign energy.

          3                 By making a commitment to purchase a

          4  percentage of its electricity from wind power, New

          5  York City can negotiate a long- term, fixed price

          6  contract that will construct new wind farms in the

          7  State, and by diversifying a portion of its electric

          8  portfolio to include this fixed price option, it can

          9  hedge itself against future electric cost increases

         10  that will continue to be driven by the fluctuations

         11  in natural gas and foreign oil prices.

         12                 Further, by negotiating such a long-

         13  term contract with new wind farms in the State, New

         14  York City will have the unique opportunity to create

         15  dramatic environmental benefits, while

         16  simultaneously reducing our reliance on foreign and

         17  polluting energy sources, and at the same time,

         18  potentially saving taxpayers millions of dollars in

         19  future electric costs.

         20                 I strongly urge your Committee and

         21  the Council to continue its leadership on

         22  environmental issues by supporting Introductory

         23  Local Law 546, and helping to create a new energy

         24  future for New York City, the State, the Nation, and

         25  our kids.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          4  thank you, Mayor Elliot.  And I look forward to

          5  making comments, asking questions on your testimony.

          6                 Mr. Case, yes, you have voluminous

          7  testimony, which I am not going to let you read, I

          8  am the Chairman.  Give me the good stuff.  I will

          9  tell you what, it is all good, give me the great

         10  stuff, okay, give me the great stuff.

         11                 MR. CASE:  That would actually take a

         12  very long time as well, but I will keep my comments

         13  short.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         15                 MR. CASE:  Good morning.  My name is

         16  Scot Case.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

         18  much for, okay.

         19                 MR. CASE:  I have been studying the

         20  green purchasing trend.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And we are

         22  joined by Council Member Bill DeBlasio, as well.

         23  Mr. Case.

         24                 MR. CASE:  Very good.  Good morning.

         25  My name is Scot Case, and I have been studying the
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          2  green purchasing trend for the past 11 years, either

          3  as a contractor for the US Environmental Protection

          4  Agency, or more recently as Director of Procurement

          5  Strategies with New American Dream, an environmental

          6  non- profit.

          7                 I have published dozen of articles

          8  and case studies on the topic, lectured events

          9  around the world, and conducted numerous day long

         10  training sessions to teach public and private sector

         11  purchasers how to buy less polluting products from

         12  less polluting companies.

         13                 On behalf of New American Dream, it

         14  is with great pleasure that I am here to applaud the

         15  leadership being demonstrated here today in New York

         16  City with the introduction of these six bills.  When

         17  examined together these bills represent one of the

         18  most significant advances of the green purchasing

         19  trend in recent memory.  Every single purchase has

         20  environmental impacts on human health and other

         21  environmental- related issues. Government and

         22  private sector companies across the country and

         23  around the world increasingly recognize that their

         24  purchasing decisions either contribute to or help

         25  prevent air pollution, water pollution,
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          2  deforestation, species extinction, dwindling natural

          3  resources, global warming, cancer, learning

          4  disabilities, rising asthma rates, and other related

          5  human health and environmental challenges.

          6                 One out of every three cleaning

          7  products, for example, contains ingredients known to

          8  cause cancer, reproductive disorders, or other

          9  serious health issues.  As with many commodities

         10  safer cleaning products are available.  The safer

         11  products are just as effective, if not more

         12  effective than their traditional counterparts.  They

         13  are frequently available from the same distributors,

         14  they are easy to identify, they do not cost any

         15  more, and as a result, it just makes good common

         16  sense to use them.

         17                 In a recent study I examined more

         18  than 80 green purchasing policies and identified 12

         19  criteria that can be used to evaluate the strength

         20  of an organization's green purchasing program.  I am

         21  absolutely thrilled to report that when examined

         22  collectively, these six bills address all 12

         23  criteria.  With the passage of these bills, New York

         24  City will be using its 10 to 12 billion in

         25  purchasing power to protect the health of its
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          2  residents, preserve the surrounding environment, and

          3  stimulate markets for safer products.

          4                 I have got specific recommendations

          5  on each of the bills, which I will leave to your

          6  reading pleasure.  I would like to add in addition

          7  to my written comments, I listened very closely to

          8  the position of the Administration, I want to

          9  acknowledge that many of the concerns that they

         10  raised are real issues and are real challenges.

         11  However, talented purchasing officials across the

         12  country and around the world have faced the exact

         13  same challenges and have found incredibly successful

         14  and effective ways of getting around them.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         17  thank you.  And I just also want to state for the

         18  record, Mr. Case, how grateful my staff is to you

         19  and your organization for all of the help that you

         20  provided to my staff in working on these bills, and

         21  I greatly appreciate your coming from, you know,

         22  Pennsylvania to be with us today.  So you have

         23  helped us before the hearing, you are here today

         24  giving testimony, and after the fact I know we will

         25  make great use of you and your views, and views of
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          2  New American Dream, so thank you.

          3                 Well let me just go back to, - -  Oh,

          4  yes, yes, I am so taken by Mr. Case's rhetoric that

          5  I have gotten as excited as he did about the subject

          6  matter.  And we are very, very fortunate to be

          7  joined by a great Environmental leader, Council

          8  Member Bill De Blasio, an honored member of this

          9  Committee and the author of Intro. 534, which is

         10  kind of sort like the over bill of all of the ones

         11  that we are doing here today.  I know he wants to

         12  make a brief statement, and I thank him for being

         13  here, I thank him for his great leadership.

         14                 Council Member DeBlasio.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  Thank you

         16  very much, Mr. Chairman.  First of all, I want to

         17  thank you for your leadership. This is not the first

         18  time that we have been here discussing the

         19  comprehensive package of actions that would really

         20  change the way the City does business, and the

         21  impact that it has on the environment.  And you

         22  know, you have been a leader in coming up with

         23  realistic solutions and putting together different

         24  pieces that compliment, I want to thank you for

         25  that.
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          2                 I just want to say on Intro. 534, you

          3  know, I think there is a running debate in our City

          4  right now, and whether government should use its

          5  purchasing power and its procurement power to affect

          6  other elements of society.  And I don't have a

          7  question in the world.  We happen to, beyond all the

          8  constraints that we may face as a city, we happen to

          9  have tremendous economic power, and it can make such

         10  a difference.  In fact, not only for the residents

         11  of this city, but it can also create leadership

         12  nationally amongst governments and within the

         13  private sector as well.

         14                 And I understand that the

         15  Administration has often seen it differently and I

         16  am sure that is a principal disagreement.  But I

         17  think it is absolutely a mistake to miss the

         18  opportunity to positively change national trends by

         19  using this huge gift that we have, this purchasing

         20  and procurement power. And I think Intro. 534 is an

         21  example, again, with many other pieces that you have

         22  done previously of how to turn us in the right

         23  direction.

         24                 I also want to emphasize, I think,

         25  for day- to- day life in our City, it will be deeply
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          2  felt as well.  So thank you very much, Mr. Chairman,

          3  I look forward to working with you to pass this

          4  bill, and look forward to seeing it go into law.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          6  Council Member DeBlasio, my pleasure, a pleasure to

          7  have you here.

          8                 Ms. Imus, thank you so much for not

          9  only being here today, but all the great work of

         10  your organization.  When I look at what you have

         11  done here, and the 98,800 pounds of toxins that you

         12  have removed through your efforts and the

         13  recognition of your work by the Governor, and

         14  everyone with an environmental sensitivity.  We

         15  thank you for what you have done.

         16                 Now let me just ask you about the

         17   "Greening the Cleaning" program, or protocol, or

         18  whatever, and this is something which you implement,

         19  people reach out to you and you kind of set them up

         20  with what they need, or direct them in terms of

         21  products, or do you actually supply the products, or

         22  how does that work?

         23                 MS. IMUS:  We manufacture the

         24  product.  The "Greening the Cleaning" program, we

         25  have a whole line called, "Greening the Cleaning,"
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          2  and we have implement it in over 40 institutions,

          3  including over 20 hospitals in the tri- state area

          4  here, a lot of them in New York City.

          5                 It started in Hackensack back in the

          6  spring of 2001 when I had the idea of approaching

          7  the hospital, working with all these kids with

          8  cancer and schools.  And it never had been done

          9  before.  And when I had gone to the hospital, I

         10  asked what kind of cleaning products do you use, and

         11  it just, all of this was just coming from common

         12  sense, why would a school or a health care

         13  institution ever use toxins, but they all do.  So

         14  that is where the whole "Greening the Cleaning"

         15  program started where we revamped the entire

         16  hospital.

         17                 From there we got so many calls of

         18  other hospitals and schools and moms and businesses,

         19  such as Newark Airport, calling us, how do we do

         20  this also.  Like I said we are a not for- profit, we

         21  go in and we physically do a inventory, cost

         22  analysis assessment, and then we physically

         23  implement the product into the facility at no cost.

         24                 To date, of all the people that we

         25  work with to implement the "Greening the Cleaning"
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          2  program, we have saved anywhere from 3 percent to 75

          3  percent.  And I cannot emphasize that enough,

          4  because I heard Council members here, and you were

          5  asking the question, nobody knew the answer, does

          6  this cost more, or how does the purchasing happen.

          7  It is so simple, and with our experience, we save

          8  people money.  It is not even that it is neutral,

          9  there has been a savings, like I said, from 3 to 75

         10  percent.  And that depends on what the facility is

         11  using, how many products they are using, what they

         12  are paying, et cetera. And then we physically go in

         13  there and do that.  And we have found it to be

         14  successful.

         15                 I had found, over the years, that it

         16  wasn't enough to just give people this information.

         17  Because as you know, the EPA, I read this

         18  information for 20 years, and it has been out there

         19  for over 30 years.  And in so, by physically doing

         20  this for institutions, I found that it is something

         21  that is done instantly, not just someone is talking

         22  about doing it.  And we found that a lot of people

         23  did not know how to go about it.

         24                 So we act as a resource to help

         25  people, not just with cleaning products, but even
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          2  building green in all environmentally friendly

          3  products.  And we also advocate and express how

          4  important it is to not just say less toxic, but the

          5  least level of toxicity in everything.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Well thank you.

          7    It is just great to see a program like this.  And

          8  as we march this legislation down the field and

          9  become more involved in how we can work out some of

         10  the details, certainly, we will look to your program

         11  as a great model.  And I am so glad that so many

         12  people who are here today know about it.  We will

         13  have the people who will be watching this hearing on

         14  Crosswalks throughout the City, who will not have

         15  the benefit of seeing this.

         16                 Why don't you just, for the people

         17  who will be watching this hearing subsequently, your

         18  contact information, so people will see this on the

         19  TV can know how to contact you.

         20                 MS. IMUS:  Okay.  They can call us at

         21  the Environmental Center at 201- 336- 8071, and our

         22  web site is also www.dienviro.com.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  That is great,

         24  thank you.

         25                 MS. IMUS:  And thank you very much,
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          2  Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You bet, you

          4  bet.  Mayor Bob, got a question for Mayor Bob.  And

          5  we really have to thank you for your leadership, you

          6  know, on green power.  Some people, you know, who

          7  can't figure out a way to get to yes, or say you

          8  can't do it, we just look up the river and say,

          9  well, Mayor Bob is doing this.  And so if Mayor Bob

         10  is doing this, you know, New York City, Croton- on-

         11  Hudson, you know, two like small towns on the

         12  Hudson, you know, like your city and our city.

         13                 MAYOR ELLIOT:  Exactly.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And you know,

         15  why can't we do things like each other.  And, I

         16  think that is my cell phone going off, I am sorry

         17  about that.

         18                 In his testimony, Gil, of the

         19  Economic Development Corporation cited a 40 to 60

         20  percent premium for green power. Has this been your

         21  experience and others in New York State Municipal

         22  Wind Buyers Group?

         23                 MAYOR ELLIOT:  Yes, there very

         24  definitely is a premium, it is not anywhere near to

         25  that extent.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I was going to

          3  reach for that phone.

          4                 MAYOR ELLIOT:  I think Council Member

          5  DeBlasio has got it for you.

          6                 Yes, there is a premium, not anywhere

          7  near that extent.  I think, however, like Council

          8  Member DeBlasio was saying before, that leadership

          9  is important here.  The State has made a commitment

         10  to purchasing renewable energy and local governments

         11  feel that it is our obligations to take leadership

         12  on this issue as well.  Like a lot of people not too

         13  many years ago, I didn't realize that wind power was

         14  available to us as a municipality, or as a business

         15  or as a non- profit, or as an individual.  But it is

         16  available, it is available now, and I think it

         17  behooves a local government, City government to take

         18  a leadership on this issue.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I thank you for

         20  that.  And as I see, just as I was very impressed

         21  with the numbers in Ms. Imus' testimony, you know we

         22  are talking about 18 million pounds per year of CO2

         23  that we could eliminate, and, or we are currently

         24  eliminating.  But if we were to do more, we could do

         25  so much more, as you indicated we have 48 megawatts
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          2  right, but we can go up to 10,000.

          3                 MAYOR ELLIOT:  That is correct, in

          4  the State of New York, NYSERDA's figure, made that

          5  calculation.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And I am

          7  directing my staff to figure out a way to get us up

          8  to 10,000, no matter what has to be done.  If I got

          9  to be elected Governor, whatever it takes, you know,

         10  whatever it takes.  But we want to get, you know, we

         11  want to get to 10,000.

         12                 Let me jump into some sweepstakes

         13  here.  And so as we move the ball forward on green

         14  power, we are going to be following your lead and

         15  working with you on this.  And just, you know, I

         16  want to thank you, once again, for being you know,

         17  who you are, and the model that you are, and I just

         18  get to say your name when like the nay- sayers come

         19  at me.  So, Mayor Elliot thank you for being here,

         20  and I have directed my staff to have an ongoing

         21  relationship with you on these matters.  And when we

         22  get this done, you are going to be, you know, you

         23  are going to be side- by- side with us.   Thank you.

         24                 MAYOR ELLIOT: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Now, Scot, now

          3  usually, you know, 10 out of 10 is like the best, we

          4  are like 12 out of 12 in your book, based on your

          5  testimony, and that is because of the help that you

          6  have given us and your organization.  You have given

          7  us very, very comprehensive testimony, and will, you

          8  know, continue to be in touch with you as we move

          9  these bills forward. And of all the people that we

         10  have partnered with to get to this place here today,

         11  you really, you know, have occupied a very special

         12  place in the hearts and minds of my staff who have

         13  loved working with you and look forward to

         14  continuing to do that.

         15                 Unfortunately, I have other panels

         16  that I have to get to.  But I am really very

         17  grateful to all of the panelists for coming forward

         18  with such, you know, testimony that is very

         19  inspiring and gives us the sense of what the

         20  possibilities are out there.  And so I thank you for

         21  your leadership, and I thank you for being here

         22  today, and God bless you.

         23                 The next witness, Steve Mitnick.  And

         24  Steve can take his place and be sworn in.  I just

         25  want to say good- bye to the other witnesses.
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          2                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

          3  right hand? In the testimony that you are about to

          4  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          5  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          6                 MR. MITNICK:  I do.

          7                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

          8                 MR. MITNICK:  I wanted to be the

          9  first to - -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sorry, Steve.

         11  Thanks, go ahead.

         12                 MR. MITNICK:  Allow me to be the

         13  first to endorse your run for Governor.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Hear, hear, and

         15  we would be, we are getting a lot of work done

         16  today.  Yolanda said, you say Governor, how about

         17  President, but you blue your line, okay.

         18                 MR. MITNICK:  Notably my comments are

         19  brief.  My comments speak to the Green Power Bill,

         20  Intro. 546, which I endorse.

         21                 The proposed legislation represents

         22  good public policy.  Aside from the obvious

         23  environmental benefits, its enactment would

         24  diversify New York City's worrisome, over dependence

         25  on natural gas power plants.  As stated by Governor
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          2  Pataki's Senior Energy Advisor, "the fact that

          3  losing gas supply and having half the generation in

          4  the City go down is one of the more frightening

          5  things I have heard in a while."  The legislation

          6  would also support Governor Pataki's initiative to

          7  stimulate a building boom of wind power and other

          8  green power plants in Upstate New York.  Given the

          9  glut of under- utilized natural gas and oil power

         10  plants in Upstate, such a boom is only feasible if

         11  downstate, New York City particularly, dramatically

         12  increases its purchases of green power.

         13                 Realistically, very few wind power

         14  and other green power plants will be built in

         15  Downstate because of the population density in New

         16  York City Metropolitan Area.  These plants will be

         17  financed and built Upstate, if, only if their power

         18  output can be sold to Downstate.  These is the rub.

         19                 Experts unanimously agree New York

         20  City's power grid has a woefully, inadequate amount

         21  of transmission with the outside world including

         22  Upstate.  This transmission crisis impacts all the

         23  City's energy goals from coping from the highest

         24  electric rates in the country to the desire to ramp

         25  up green power.  I might mention that Mr. Quiniones
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          2  of EDC mentioned the high rates, and the increasing

          3  rates, we will be having double digit increases for

          4  years to come in the City, and those are the highest

          5  electric rates in the United States.

          6                 Last week, as Mr. Quiniones said, the

          7  Economic Development Corporation signed an agreement

          8  with Con Edison solutions to purchase wind power.

          9  We should applaud this action, but recognize that

         10  this purchase was very small, equivalent to about 28

         11  minutes of the City's use per annum.  And that

         12  further purchases will be difficult.  At most times

         13  there is little or no available transmission from

         14  Upstate where wind power and other green power can

         15  be built to the City.  That is one difference

         16  between us and Croton- on- Hudson, they can buy all

         17  the wind power that they want, we cannot because we

         18  don't have the transmission.

         19                 Unless more transmission is built,

         20  Governor Pataki cannot come anywhere close to

         21  realizing his green power goals. The City has a full

         22  requirements contract with the State, specifically

         23  the New York Power Authority (NYPA).  Virtually all

         24  the power used by the subways, schools, pollution

         25  control facilities, Housing Authority, and other
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          2  agencies of the City government is purchased from

          3  the State under this contract.

          4                 In its June 4th, 2004 request for

          5  proposals, NYPA sort power sources for the City

          6  government.  However, as reported recently on

          7  February 4th, 2005, this process has apparently

          8  failed with the pullout of the favored New Jersey

          9  bidder.  It now appears that no transmission lines,

         10  green power plants, or any projects will be built.

         11  This must be considered a disaster in light of Mayor

         12  Bloomberg's report 13 months ago, entitled, "New

         13  York City Energy Policy and Electricity Resource

         14  Road Map." Under Governor Pataki's "Energy to

         15  Regulations Policies," the fact is that every

         16  transmission line planned to New York City has been

         17  shelved.  So our ability to do everything, including

         18  having enough energy for the Olympics, should we

         19  receive that award, is impossible really.  Imagine

         20  the Olympics would be during the summer when we have

         21  electricity the shortest.

         22                 In conclusion, the proposed

         23  legislation should be enacted.  The desirability of

         24  increased green power is still one more reason why

         25  respectfully, Governor Pataki should reform his
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          2  energy to regulation policies, and I might say, the

          3  Mayor should stand up for what the City needs.

          4  These policies that are evidently not able in their

          5  present form to meet the transmission, the green

          6  power, and the economic needs of New York.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          9  thank you, Steve. I greatly appreciate your support

         10  of the green power legislation that we have here.

         11  And, you know, I had such high hopes for your green

         12  power efforts with Conjunction.  Could you give us a

         13  status on that, if there is one at this point?

         14                 MR. MITNICK:  Well, because of what

         15  the New York Power Authority did, that project has

         16  been, unfortunately, killed.  As we reported to the

         17  State and as reported in the he press.

         18  But just to give you, to reflect on the comments

         19  earlier by EDC, our proposal to the New York Power

         20  Authority was jointly made with the largest

         21  hydroelectric supplier in New York State, Brasscan

         22  (phonetic).  And the second largest developer of

         23  wind power in Upstate, PPM, a very big company.  And

         24  both of those companies were proposing to NYPA to

         25  produce hundreds of megawatts of hydro and wind
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          2  power that would have been provided to the New York

          3  City government.  So the opportunity, just like the

          4  Mayor of Croton said, the opportunities is there.

          5                 The cost difference, we felt was, we

          6  were cheaper, just like Ms. Imus talked about green

          7  products, so they are not more expensive over the

          8  long run.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Well I think I

         10  want to use the occasion of this, you know, green

         11  power bill to speak to, not only the issues that it

         12  tries to speak to, but to get sort of like a larger

         13  grasp of why we couldn't get Conjunction done, and

         14  our transmission problems.

         15                 You know I would say that if we are

         16  going to move the ball forward on green power in New

         17  York City, you know, we have to in a very

         18  comprehensive way, and not all those ways can be

         19  spoken to by New York City legislation, because we

         20  only have the ability to legislate from our level.

         21  These are, and there are other complicating factors,

         22  like you mentioned with the Governor and like the

         23  Energy Deregulation and all these other factors.

         24                 But I really want to partner with you

         25  in a very significant way to speak to what we can
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          2  speak to on the City level, and to kind of build a

          3  bridge to the future in terms of, you know, reaching

          4  out to the State and whatever we have to do to sort

          5  of clear the way for like more transmission lines,

          6  and the ability to go green in New York City to a

          7  much larger extent than we are now able to do.

          8                 So, you know, we should clearly have

          9  a follow- up conversation on that.  I see that my

         10  good friend and one of your business

         11  representatives, Ray Fryer, is in the audience.

         12  Great to see you, Ray.  And we should get together

         13  to talk about not only this, you know, green power

         14  bill, but you know next steps and how we can play a

         15  real, or how, at least, this Council can be a very

         16  significant voice in helping to call upon the State

         17  and others to sort of pave the way for green

         18  opportunities in New York City.

         19                 MR. MITNICK:  Well I would conclude

         20  that your leadership and the Council's leadership in

         21  this area has been tremendous.  But the one thing I

         22  hope that the unfortunate failure of my project can

         23  be as an inspiration, the power is here.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         25                 MR. MITNICK:  When the New York Times
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          2  editorialized in favor of our project - -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          4                 MR. MITNICK: - - they pointed out

          5  that there is finger pointing.  But this Mayor,

          6  Mayor Bloomberg has the power, under a contract with

          7  the State to demand the kind of power that we want.

          8  And so the Mayor is not powerless, and he has that

          9  ability.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  Well we

         11  are going to follow this up.  I know of your

         12  commitment, you know, Ray is going to put it

         13  together.  We will get together and talk about

         14  exactly that.

         15                 Steve, always a pleasure to see you,

         16  really appreciate your ability to be here today.

         17                 MR. MITNICK:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And Ray, great

         19  to see you as well.  God Bless.

         20                 I just want to ask if Robert Troller

         21  is in the room, is Robert Troller in the room?

         22  Okay, the next panel we are going to have Cameron

         23  Lory of INFORM; Alan Hershkowitz of NRDC; and we are

         24  also on this panel going to bring up my friend, Tom

         25  Outerbridge; Steven Boese.  To be followed by, on
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          2  the next panel after that, would be my very good

          3  friend, Susan Chin, and Susan O'Brien of NYCOSH.

          4                 Okay, and thank you all for being

          5  here.  Before Donna does the honors, in a very, very

          6  special way, I have to thank Cameron Lory and Alan

          7  Hershkowitz for all of the good work that you have

          8  done with regard to getting us here today.  We

          9  greatly, greatly appreciate everything that you have

         10  done.  And my staff is trying to move me along.

         11  Donna De Costanzo will swear in the panel, and then

         12  you can present your testimony.

         13                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         14  right hands? In the testimony you are about to give,

         15  do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the whole

         16  truth, and nothing but the truth?

         17                 ALL:  I do.

         18                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, before we

         20  start, also, it is also great to see Tom, and Steven

         21  from the Healthy Schools Network.  We appreciate all

         22  that you have done, as well, thank you.  We have,

         23  you know heard from you in the process, and we have,

         24  you know, other individuals from the private sector

         25  who we have not heard from whose oxes would be gored
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          2  by this legislation, we definitely have to get them

          3  on as well.  We have already, you know, partnered

          4  with you, we look forward to partnering with you.

          5  So this is all by way of saying you have to kind of

          6  keep it brief.  But we have had an ongoing dialogue

          7  with you, but we have to get some of the other

          8  private sector folks to the table, as well.

          9                 So with that said, I want to call

         10  upon Cameron first because I know you have time

         11  commitment.  And then in whatever order the other

         12  witnesses wish to go, that is fine with me.

         13                 MS. LORY:  Thank you, Sir.  I am with

         14  INFORM, as was said.  We are a non- profit

         15  organization, National Research and Outreach Group,

         16  and what we do is look at the practices of

         17  government agencies, private organizations,

         18  businesses, and institutions to look for ways that

         19  they can improve or lessen their impact on the

         20  environment and human health.

         21                 I know we are on a great time

         22  constraint, so I am going to be very brief.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         24                 MS. LORY:  And I am going to hit on

         25  just a couple of areas that are related to the
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          2  research that we have done.  And I am just going to

          3  go in the order of the bills, and their number

          4  orders, and I think this will help highlight the

          5  importance of the impact of these bills.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We already know

          7  they are important, you know, we know that.

          8                 MS. LORY:  I'm sorry?  We know that

          9  they are.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         11                 MS. LORY:  So I wanted to highlight

         12  some pieces of these.  Just for instance, you know

         13  people don't think about light bulbs.   These bills

         14  start to talk about in Energy Efficiency a simple

         15  light bulb.  We commonly use a 100- year- old

         16  technology.  And just in the City Hall Chambers

         17  using this 100 year- old technology cost the City

         18  $2,400 extra dollars a year. So we look at Energy

         19  Efficiency in the City and all of the emissions that

         20  are associated with them, and its huge impacts due

         21  to simple measures.

         22                 And the hazardous material bills is

         23  one of the few pieces of legislation in the country

         24  that deals with persistent bioaccumulate toxins,

         25  which is a class of chemicals, which can never be
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          2  safely used or handled or disposed of at the end of

          3  a life.  And by requiring recycling of electronics

          4  and low BOC finishes, low mercury lamps, there are

          5  significant reductions into the environment, and

          6  significant reductions into human impacts on human

          7  health.  And by seeking to limit vinyl in the City,

          8  it puts the City in a leadership position.  There

          9  are very few localities across the country who have

         10  made steps as bold as these.

         11                 On the cleaning piece, for the last

         12  few years INFORM has tracked a revolution in

         13  cleaning products.  And in response manufacturers,

         14  in response to requirements for green products and

         15  environmentally friendly products, in general,

         16  manufacturers have developed products to meet these

         17  standards. Many manufacturers have gone beyond these

         18  standards.  And one of the pieces that I truly

         19  applaud for within the "Greening on Cleaning Act"

         20  part of this is not only does the City say, oh yes,

         21  we can meet a minimum rung of the ladder, we can

         22  actually participate in what has been evolving over

         23  time in the cleaning area.  So I very much applaud

         24  the strong steps that you are taking, and also the

         25  strong leadership position that the City is pleased
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          2  to take.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you so

          5  much for all of your help.  We are very, very

          6  grateful to you and all the good folks in INFORM.

          7                 Okay, Tom, you are up.

          8                 MR. OUTERBRIDGE:  Good morning.

          9  Thank you very much, Chairman.  My name is Thomas

         10  Outerbridge.  I am here to testify on behalf of Hugo

         11  Nu.  We will be submitting some written comments in

         12  the next few days.  And you probably Hugo Nu has

         13  recently become the recycler for the City's curbside

         14  metal, glass, and plastic, but the company has also

         15  been for many decades in the private scrap metal

         16  business.  And in that capacity Hugo Nu participates

         17  a great deal in legislative process, both directly

         18  and through the Institute for Scrap Recycling

         19  Industries.  And we are very active as a company in

         20  legislation that is along the lines of Intro. 544,

         21  dealing with the reduction of hazardous materials in

         22  products.  These are measures that we often fall

         23  under the category, for us anyway, of the design for

         24  recycling, or manufacturer responsibility.

         25                 We have been working with a number of
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          2  legislative bills at the State level having to do

          3  with reducing mercury products in automobiles.  Many

          4  of which we end up recycling and shredding and

          5  having to deal with the mercury.

          6                 So we certainly have heard very

          7  compelling reasons having to do with children's

          8  health and so forth.  But from a recycler's

          9  standpoint, the issue of removing toxic and

         10  hazardous materials from products is a key issue.

         11  When there are hazardous materials in products they

         12  add to the cost of recycling, and they add to the

         13  human health, and environmental risks at our end of

         14  the processor.  So we look at that piece of

         15  legislation as a sort of a way to enhance

         16  recyclability of the waste materials that the City

         17  generates.

         18                 Obviously, the procurement of

         19  products with recycled content, such as Intro. 545

         20  is another sort of measure that we support.

         21  Recycled content has not traditionally been an issue

         22  with metal products, they simply make their way back

         23  into metal, it just happens on its own.  But

         24  obviously there are other products and material

         25  categories out there where government procurement
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          2  can play a strong role, and we have not had the

          3  chance to review the federal guidelines that you

          4  refer to in this bill.  I think that it is probably

          5  known as a good start, but it would not surprise me

          6  if there are ways of tailoring that federal list to

          7  New York City, both to the products that the City

          8  buys, as well as the recyclable materials for which

          9  there is greatest need here locally for a market

         10  development.

         11                 And glass is obviously a very good

         12  example.  It has traditionally been the hardest to

         13  recycle material in the City's curbside program.

         14  And I think if we were to look at the City's

         15  procurement needs, products everywhere from sand and

         16  aggregate substitutes, to blast medium and

         17  fiberglass are all materials that can be made from

         18  recycled glass.

         19                 So I just wanted to thank you for

         20  drafting these bills and holding these hearings.

         21  And most importantly, I am really here today to say

         22  that Hugo Nu, as a company, as a private sector

         23  recycler, is ready to work with the Council and the

         24  Administration, sit down with sort of be, along with

         25  the environmental community in the drafting of bills
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          2  down the road that look to improve recyclability,

          3  and increase recovery rates, improve markets for

          4  recycables.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Tom.

          6    As always, it has been great to partner with you,

          7  and as we have over the years in so many different

          8  ways.

          9                 And I am particularly interested in

         10  this mercury issue that we can have, perhaps, a

         11  subsequent conversation about. It is a real interest

         12  of mine, as well.  Are you going to stay for the

         13  rest of the panel?

         14                 MR. OUTERBRIDGE:  Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, great,

         16  thank you.

         17                 DR. HERSHKOWITZ:  Thank you, Mr.

         18  Chair, thank you for your good work.  My name is Dr.

         19  Alan Hershkowitz, and I am a Senior Scientist with

         20  the National Resources Defense Council.  As you of

         21  course know, NRDC is a national, non- profit

         22  organization that has worked on New York City Solid

         23  Waste Energy and other environmental issues for over

         24  30 years.  I, myself, am the Director of NRDC's

         25  National Solid Waste Project and Paper Industry
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          2  Project.  I directed those projects for the last 17

          3  years, and I have personally been involved in

          4  crafting environmental preferable procurement

          5  guidelines for the private sector and government

          6  agencies for more than two decades.  And I was

          7  actually one of the principal designers of President

          8  Clinton's first Greening the Government Executive

          9  Order back in 2993, and subsequent revisions to that

         10  Executive Order.

         11                 On behalf of the Natural Resources

         12  Defense Council, I am pleased to be here today to

         13  offer you our strong support for this important

         14  package of legislation that will significantly

         15  strengthen New York City's purchasing practices in

         16  several key areas.

         17                 In deference to your request that we

         18  keep our testimony short, I am not going to read and

         19  go through the entire range of items that are

         20  contained in my testimony.  We have submitted our 20

         21  copies to you, so you have our statement on the

         22  record.  I do just want to say a couple, I speak to

         23  two specific components that are in the package of

         24  legislation that you offer.

         25                 Let me, of course, remind you that
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          2  taxpayers do not want to subsidized pollution;

          3  taxpayers do not want their tax dollars going to buy

          4  products that cause deforestation, that cause

          5  species extinction, that cause destruction of fresh

          6  water resources.  But unfortunately that is the case

          7  right now with the overwhelming majority of products

          8  purchased by the City of New York.  New Yorkers are

          9  not only ponying up their tax dollars, but they are

         10  actually financing the procurement of

         11  environmentally ignorant products.

         12                 Take paper, the overwhelming amount

         13  of paper purchased by New York City, at least seven

         14  or eight out of every 10 tons of paper purchased by

         15  New York City is not made with post- consumer

         16  recycled fiber.  Consequently, virgin paper

         17  production is the third largest generator of global

         18  warming pollution.  Virgin paper production is the

         19  number one consumer of fresh water on the planet,

         20  and the number one polluter of fresh water on the

         21  planet.  Virgin paper production is responsible for

         22  42 percent of all global deforestation, after you

         23  take out industrial fuel use wood, industrial use of

         24  fuel woods. Basically, also virgin paper, when you

         25  talk about mercury, a reasonable amount of virgin
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          2  paper is actually made with caustic that is

          3  manufactured with the use of mercury, and those

          4  caustic chloracalyde (phonetic) plants used in the

          5  paper industry actually emit more mercury than all

          6  the US Power Plants combined in the United States.

          7                 So virgin paper is a huge problem

          8  ecologically. It is wiping out forest base

          9  communities in southeast United States, in the

         10  Pacific northwestern, in the Canadian Boreal

         11  (phonetic), in the subtropics.  There is going to be

         12  a 70 percent increase in tropical deforestation just

         13  to make paper in the next 10 years alone.

         14                 Consequently, your initiative to get

         15  New York City to buy recycled paper is enormously

         16  important, and you have to specify as you have,

         17  post- consumer recycled content, as the federal

         18  government did, as Bill Clinton did, as you are

         19  doing here.  Because post- consumer is what people

         20  throw out of their homes every day.  By prioritizing

         21  post- consumer you are rewarding the investment

         22  taxpayers make in the infrastructure to collect this

         23  material.

         24                 Overwhelmingly, pre- consumer

         25  material has for more than a century in the paper
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          2  market been easily recovered by paper mills and

          3  recycled.  There is no problem of recycling a pre

          4  consumer paper.  There is no marketing problem for

          5  pre- consumer paper.  By contrast, almost seven out

          6  of every ten tons of post consumer paper discarded

          7  in New York, as well as throughout the United States

          8  are not recovered for recycling.  We need to

          9  rewarded the infrastructure investment that

         10  taxpayers in New York City have made to collect

         11  post- consumer paper, and by prioritizing the

         12  purchase of post- consumer you are not only

         13  improving the environmental profile of the supply

         14  chain of our paper, but you are also rewarding

         15  taxpayers investment.

         16                 Finally, I just want to also strongly

         17  support the establishment of an Office of

         18  Environmental Purchasing.  Where we wrote President

         19  Clinton's Executive Order 12873, and then in the

         20  revisions 13103, we established the Office of the

         21  Federal Environmental Executive that did nothing but

         22  oversee the implementation of procurement, green

         23  procurement, by the federal government.  It is

         24  absolutely critical to have a taskmaster overseeing

         25  the alleviation of barriers, the many, many barriers
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          2  that are in the way of doing green procurement.

          3                 You cannot expect centuries of

          4  procurement practices to suddenly become sustainable

          5  and to work in an environmentally green way.  And

          6  literally thousands of supplier relationships to

          7  change overnight.  Each agency is going to face

          8  many, many hurdles, and by having a dedicated office

          9  to oversee that, in fact, your mandates are

         10  respected, that the law is being carried out, that

         11  the data are being collected, and that vendors are

         12  being properly educated, is absolutely critical for

         13  the success of your initiative.  It was critical for

         14  the success of this initiative at the federal level,

         15  and by the way, the Office of Federal Environmental

         16  Executive still exists, President Bush has appointed

         17  people to it.  One person left, a new person has

         18  been reappointed, newly appointed.  It is critical

         19  at the federal level, it is critical here.

         20                 Again, there is a lot more in my

         21  testimony, but in deference to your request to keep

         22  it short, I will now end.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         25  Alan, for all of your excellent work, past, present,
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          2  and future for sure.

          3                 Steven, before, just one moment.

          4  Please continue, I'm sorry.

          5                 MR. BOESE:  Thank you, I will just

          6  add that the Office of Federal Environmental

          7  Executive, as well as the White House Council and

          8  Environmental Quality have identified healthy

          9  schools as a priority.  And we are happy about that.

         10                 I am Steve Boese.  I am with Healthy

         11  Schools Network, we are a not- for- profit advocacy

         12  organization working on behalf of environmental

         13  health at schools.

         14                 To summarize our major points, we

         15  support Intro. 552 very much, and we congratulate

         16  Ms. Moskowitz, as well as Mr. Gennaro, Miller, and

         17  the other co- sponsors for their leadership with

         18  this important legislation.  As I have said before,

         19  Intro. 552 is an important children's health

         20  initiative.  By encouraging the use of less toxic

         21  cleaning products in schools, we will provide for

         22  healthy school environments for students, as well as

         23  the custodial staff, teachers, and all the other

         24  building occupants.

         25                 The products that we are talking
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          2  about, Green Cleaning cleans just as well, if not

          3  better than conventional chemical products.  And it

          4  is also as Ms. Imus said, and as I will indicate in

          5  this testimony cost- effective for schools as well.

          6  We also support the other bills, but Green Cleaning

          7  in Intro. 552 is a special priority for us and that

          8  is the focus of our comments today.

          9                 I want to make a few comments quickly

         10  that have not been made earlier today, and I will

         11  not dwell on comments that have been made.  But I

         12  very much appreciate Ms. Moskowitz's comments about

         13  schools and cleaning products, and the importance of

         14  552 and its applications in schools.  I want to add

         15  that children are uniquely vulnerable, they are more

         16  vulnerable to environmental contaminants, many of

         17  which are found in schools. Because children are

         18  proportionately to their body size breathing more

         19  air, drinking more fluids, eating more foods than

         20  adults, they are disproportionately affected by the

         21  environmental toxins that we are talking about.

         22                 Developing system are also more

         23  vulnerable because of their behavior.  Hand to mouth

         24  behaviors, which persist in children, young

         25  children, as well as children with developmental
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          2  disabilities increases the risk of ingesting toxins.

          3    Even children's proximity to the floor relative

          4  adults makes them more vulnerable.  Since research

          5  and experience shows that when you have poor indoors

          6  air, many of the contaminants are concentrated down

          7  lower to the floor and children are breathing with

          8  their more vulnerable systems more concentrated

          9  pollutants in the air.

         10                 Children's exposure to environmental

         11  hazards at schools contributes to multiple health

         12  problems.  Poor school indoors air is a major

         13  contributor to and exacerbating asthma, which is

         14  obviously in epidemic proportions among school age

         15  children, especially in New York City.

         16                 Hazards in the school environment are

         17  linked to a whole host of other health problems

         18  including respiratory problems, poor concentration,

         19  rashes, headaches, gastrointestinal problems,

         20  nervous system disorders, and cancers.  Nationally

         21  there has been a dramatic rise in the number of

         22  children inflicted with learning disabilities,

         23  attention deficit hyperactivity disorder, and

         24  autism.  These conditions are all linked in one way

         25  or another with environmental toxins, and many of
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          2  these environmental toxins can be found in the

          3  school environment.

          4                 Industrial strength cleaning products

          5  that are used by many schools air to indoor air

          6  pollution.  These products are risky to use around

          7  children, especially those with asthma and sensitive

          8  airways or other health problems.  They are

          9  hazardous to the cleaning staff that handle them

         10  directly, and they present schools with special

         11  handling and disposal costs. Improperly stored,

         12  improperly used cleaning products also put children

         13  at risk for potentially severe poisoning.  Green

         14  cleaning, therefore, is a very cost- effective,

         15  health intervention strategy.

         16                 There is research, which I have

         17  discussed with your staff, and we would be happy to

         18  talk with you before.  I will skip over that

         19  section.

         20                 I would like to go back to the

         21  testimony that Ms. Moskowitz referenced before.  At

         22  a New York State Assembly public hearing on healthy

         23  schools issues held last winter in the City, a full

         24  day of testimony was heard by the Education, Health

         25  and Environmental Conservation Committee about
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          2  healthy school environments.  Of special interest,

          3  the school facility directors who have implemented

          4  environmentally preferable less toxic cleaning

          5  program, the testimony confirmed that

          6  environmentally preferred cleaning products clean

          7  just as effectively, if not better than conventional

          8  products.

          9                 One director testified that the

         10  schools felt cleaner, and that many others noticed

         11  this change and brought that to his attention as

         12  well.

         13                 Testimony was also heard that

         14  confirmed that environmentally preferred and

         15  healthier cleaners are easier to use and less costly

         16  to use due to reduced storage and disposal costs.

         17  We would also add that additional cost benefits

         18  result from dramatically reduced occupational

         19  exposures and poisonings that result from accidental

         20  exposures to these products.  And of course, by

         21  reducing illness for children and all the others in

         22  the school facility.

         23                 At the same hearing New York

         24  Department of Education testified that they would

         25  soon in cooperation with the Healthy Schools Network
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          2   --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Steve, if I

          4  could, I have to- -

          5                 MR. BOESE:  Have I gone on too long?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, staff is

          7  pushing me. If you have any, very specific, you

          8  know, items with regard to the legislation, you

          9  know, the background is helpful, but I am just being

         10  pushed to move along here a little bit.  So if you

         11  have anything specific about, anything that is in

         12  the bill that we have to look at directly.

         13                 MR. BOESE:  Well I offer our support

         14  because this is a very important children's health

         15  legislation.  My colleagues from New American Dream

         16  and INFORM, we defer to their comments in terms of

         17  specific changes and specific structuring as the

         18  legislation reads and are comfortable with their

         19  testimony.

         20                 We just want to say that this

         21  initiative improves health, that they clean just as

         22  well or better than other products, and that they

         23  save money, as Ms. Imus and others have said, they

         24  save money for schools.  And that there is no reason

         25  not to enact this into law within that context.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

          3                 MR. BOESE:  I will leave it at that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          5  thank you, I appreciate that very much.  I thought I

          6  was going to have the opportunity to kind of you

          7  come back for questions or whatever. I don't have

          8  the luxury of time to be able to do that.

          9                 But Tom, you and are have got to talk

         10  about mercury at some point.  And Alan, I am just

         11  very, very grateful to everything that you have done

         12  on this.  And Steven, it was great to have you out

         13  at the press conference the other day talking about

         14  this.  I know we can count on your continued

         15  support.  And I am very, very grateful to each of

         16  you for being here and all that you are doing to

         17  help us.

         18                 Thanks a lot.  And the next panel as

         19  we previously announced, Susan Chin from DC37, Susan

         20  O'Brien from NYCOSH.  And before this panel starts,

         21  to follow this we will have Steven Rosario of the

         22  American Plastics Council, to be followed by a

         23  panel, Pamela Kennedy of the Gabriel First

         24  Corporation; Mike Zanche, I'm guessing, I hope I am

         25  reading that correctly, also of Gabriel; Ronald
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          2  Ingber of American Cleaning Solutions; and Dennis

          3  Griesing, hope I am pronouncing that close to

          4  correctly, with The Soap and Detergent Association.

          5  So that will be the next two panels after this, and

          6  Donna will swear you in.

          7                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

          8  right hand? In the testimony that you are about to

          9  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         10  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         11                 ALL: I do.

         12                 MS. DETAIL COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, and

         14  in wish ever order you wish you can proceed with

         15  your testimony.  And just to kind of be a bad guy

         16  and to be, I'm just, got to reset stage in the

         17  hearing, what we are looking for are very specific

         18  comments. We have heard a lot of kind of background,

         19  broadbrush, you know, kind of stuff.  We are looking

         20  for, you know, we are getting into sort of like the

         21  laser surgery, sort of, you know, part of the

         22  hearing, where we are getting down to very specific

         23  comments. You know, because we kind of generally

         24  understand where you are coming from on the bill,

         25  but we are taking the laser out, at this point.
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          2                 And so thank you for helping us out,

          3  and we thank you for your patience.  We know it has

          4  been a long time waiting for you to get up and join

          5  us here.  So thank you.

          6                 And with that said, I guess, well, I

          7  guess I could just say Susan, right, you are both

          8  Susan, so I can't miss, so Susan, okay, here we go.

          9                 MS. CHIN:  Okay, good afternoon, and

         10  thank you Committee Chair James Gennaro, members of

         11  the Environmental Protection Committee, for holding

         12  this hearing on this very important issue.  My name

         13  is Susan Chin, and I am an Assistant Director in the

         14  Political Action Department of DC37, and I am here

         15  on behalf of DC37.

         16                 DC37 represents thousands of City

         17  workers who work in and maintain City buildings.

         18  The products used to clean these buildings have an

         19  impact on all of these workers.  In addition, as

         20  residents of New York City, these workers also have

         21  great concern about the impact of cleaning chemicals

         22  on the City's environment.  The runoff from these

         23  chemicals can cause damage to the City's waterways

         24  and air.

         25                 Workers often complain of
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          2  respiratory, skin, and eye irritation that worsens

          3  at work.  For custodial workers, the chemicals they

          4  work with on a daily basis can cause chronic health

          5  conditions.  Safety and health experts always

          6  recommend substituting a hazardous chemical with a

          7  less dangerous one as the best way to protect

          8  workers from injury.  By replacing cleaning agents

          9  and other custodial products with less toxic

         10  products, a significant irritant and pollutant can

         11  be removed from the workplace.  The Brooklyn Academy

         12  of Music, and employer of a number of District

         13  Council 37 members, including custodial staff, has

         14  recently successfully switched to environmentally

         15  safe cleaning products.  We applaud BAM for its

         16  foresight and urge all city agencies to follow suit.

         17                 DC37 strongly supports Intro. 552 as

         18  a positive step towards making our members'

         19  workplaces and home environment safer.

         20                 Thank you for allowing me the

         21  opportunity to testify today.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Susan, thank

         23  you.  This is why I love DC37, see, one page, just

         24  God bless DC37, that is a beautiful thing.  Thank

         25  you, thank you so much, Susan.
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          2                 NYCOSH has like four pages, four

          3  pages, got a red pen right here.  Okay.  You have to

          4  make the light go off.

          5                 MS. O'BRIEN:  Okay, my name is Susan

          6  O'Brien.  I am the Associate Director for the New

          7  York Committee for Occupational Safety and Health

          8  (NYCOSH).  I will not talk about who we are, since I

          9  believe you know, Congress Member Gennaro.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Of course.

         11                 MS. O'BRIEN:  I mean Council Member

         12  Gennaro.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  No, its

         14  Governor after today, remember we did that already.

         15                 MS. O'BRIEN:  Yes.  We are here today

         16  to strongly speak in favor of Intro. 534, 544, and

         17  552.  The one thing that I don't think that there

         18  has been much discussion of here is how these

         19  changes would effect the workers, and we believe

         20  that it would be, these would be protective measures

         21  for workers in the City who would be dealing with

         22  these chemicals.

         23                 And just two seconds of background

         24  that there are over a thousand new chemicals that

         25  come into the workplace every year, and there is
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          2  already an excess of 75,000 chemical ingredients,

          3  600,000 chemical products, and nobody tests these,

          4  really.  I mean the information that workers get

          5  about these come from the manufacturer downstream

          6  through Occupational and Safety Health Acts, Hazard

          7  Communication Act.  And so there is really, only

          8  indicates in and OSHA has looked at 500 of these,

          9  you know, 75,000 chemicals and given them a

         10  permissible exposure limit. And really only created

         11  much more protective regulations for about 26 of

         12  them.  So there is very little that a worker can

         13  hang its hat on in order to be able to go an

         14  employer and say, this is too dangerous, there is

         15  nothing, you know, we don't really want to be

         16  looking with this, workers don't have those rights.

         17                 And when they do try and get the

         18  hazard communication standard enforced, so that they

         19  can at least learn about what they are exposed to.

         20  It is one of the most often cited regulations by

         21  both OSHA and PESH here in New York State, and the

         22  numbers are in our testimony.

         23                 So in order to reduce the number of

         24  toxic chemicals, because obviously the workers are

         25  the first line, the first line of defense, that, you
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          2  know, as Ms. Chin said, that the first, the Public

          3  and Occupational Health method for approaching these

          4  issues is what they refer to as engineering

          5  controls, which means that you eliminate the toxic

          6  chemical from the workers breeding zone.  And the

          7  way that you do that is by, in this case,

          8  substitution.  And so we believe that in Intro. 552,

          9  the substitution of less toxic cleaning products,

         10  particularly things like solvents and decreases is

         11  extremely important.  And lastly, that Intro. 544 is

         12  also going to assist whole other wide array of

         13  workers who work in any building where there is

         14  carpeting, frankly.

         15                 So we are very much in support of

         16  these bills, and we will do all we can to assist.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you both

         18  so much. Susan Chin, Susan O'Brien, we appreciate

         19  the partnership that we always had with your two

         20  great organizations, and thank you for helping us

         21  make the case on why we have to get this done.

         22  Thanks very much, appreciate it.

         23                 And Stephen Rosario of the American

         24  Plastics Council.

         25                 MR. ROSARIO:  Good afternoon, Mr.
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          2  Chairman, members of the Committee.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Donna will do

          4  the little ritual that we have here.

          5                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

          6  right hand? In the testimony that you are about to

          7  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          8  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          9                 MR. ROSARIO:  I do.

         10                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

         12  Rosario, thank you for being here.

         13                 MR. ROSARIO:  Oh, it is my pleasure.

         14  Thank you for holding this hearing.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Wow, look at

         16  this thing.

         17                 MR. ROSARIO:  I am sorry?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Wow this whole

         19  thing here.

         20                 MR. ROSARIO:  I do not have written

         21  testimony, but I do have lots of information for

         22  you.  So I will limit myself to specific comments.

         23                 My name is Stephen Rosario.  I am

         24  Director of the Northeast Regional Office for the

         25  American Plastics Council.  I also represent the
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          2  American Chemistry Council, which is the other half

          3  of our association.

          4                 As my note indicates, we do have some

          5  problems with Intro. 544, but we also have an

          6  interest in Intro. 534, 545, and 552.  I would like

          7  the opportunity to submit written comments, which

          8  you do not have today, and hopefully you are happy

          9  about that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

         11                 MR. ROSARIO:  So you won't be reading

         12  anything.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Get us your

         14  comments, absolutely we want to hear from you.

         15                 MR. ROSARIO:  Absolutely.  We

         16  certainly support the current steps that are

         17  outlined in the bills regarding safety and health.

         18  Obviously, as representative of companies who make

         19  products, we are very concerned about safety and

         20  health for consumers and works.  That is what we do

         21  for a living.  We live in a leggiest (sic) society

         22  and you know when something goes wrong, it is our

         23  member companies who are usually the ones of the one

         24  at the end of lawsuit.

         25                 The problem that we have with Intro.
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          2  544 is the section dealing with the prohibition on

          3  the use of PVC or polyvinyl chloride products, or

          4  what more commonly known as vinyl.  This is a

          5  product that has many positive attributes and

          6  benefits.  It is durable, it can be used on siding

          7  for housing and for windows, for its insulation

          8  properties, it is flexible. You find it in hospitals

          9  and IV bags, tubing, vinyl gloves.

         10                 It is safe.  This is a product that

         11  has been on the market for about 45 years.  It is

         12  cost- effective and competitive.  And it can be

         13  recycled, and obviously, I can talk about the

         14  recycling issues, because there are some.

         15                 You find these products in building

         16  materials, hospitals, transportation, wire and

         17  cable, and plastic pipe, which I will not talk about

         18  here.  The effort to ban PVC is something that has

         19  been around for almost as long as I have been in

         20  this position, which is about 11 years.  And no

         21  state has taken any action against PVC.  There have

         22  been one or two small municipalities - -

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I missed that

         24  last statement, would you just back up a little bit.

         25                 MR. ROSARIO:  Yes, sure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Something about

          3  no one has taken action yet, or no state has taken

          4  action.

          5                 MR. ROSARIO:  No state has taken any

          6  action to limit or prohibit the use of PVC.  There

          7  have been some small municipalities, I know for

          8  example, the town of Okonwick, Maine prohibits the

          9  use PVC fencing.  And again, I think that is because

         10  of the recognition of its benefits and its

         11  properties in the various applications.

         12                 In terms of some of the other issues

         13  that are related to this bill and some of the others

         14  that we do have an interest in, and you have heard,

         15  that this is not going to be a simple task.  It does

         16  require a major effort and resources to do it

         17  correctly and properly.

         18                 One of the things I do have in the

         19  package - -

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  To do what?

         21                 MR. ROSARIO:  In terms of creating

         22  these lists for product materials, chemicals, and

         23  all of that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, I see,

         25  okay, right.
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          2                 MR. ROSARIO:  I do have in there,

          3  since PVC is a chlorine- derived product, what we

          4  call the chlorine tree.  And if you take a look at

          5  that, you will see how many products contain

          6  chlorine.  For example, break fluid, contains

          7  chlorine.  That is a product that I am sure the City

          8  buys much of for its vehicles and its trucks, et

          9  cetera.

         10                 So the guidelines as we see missing

         11  in all the bills are not evidenced based or

         12  scientific based.  And that you have got to compare

         13  apples to apples, for both plastics and chemical

         14  substances that are targeted.

         15                 You have heard a lot about the

         16  substitutions.  It is very easy to say that there

         17  are substitutes.  It is much more difficult to

         18  really prove that they are better or as good as the

         19  products that are out there.

         20                 So I will end my comments, and

         21  entertain any questions.  Thank you, again, for the

         22  opportunity to present testimony.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

         24  Rosario, you certainly have my commitment to work

         25  with you and your representatives in a very
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          2  proactive way to make sure that we get the full

          3  benefit of your views and perceptions of what we are

          4  trying to do here.  And you know, you have my

          5  commitment that anything that I am going to advance

          6  in this Committee has to be fact based, science-

          7  based, you know, evidence- based.  As a scientist

          8  myself, I certainly want to get all of my science on

          9  the table, and have the science kind of drive the

         10  policy.

         11                 And we know that you have a lot to

         12  offer, a lot to bring to the table because you do

         13  this every day.  And you have indicated that you

         14  have written comments that you would like to pass

         15  along to us, we welcome that.  The Counsel to the

         16  Committee is Donna De Costanzo, we also have Russell

         17  Unger from the Council staff that is working on

         18  this.  And you know whatever information that you

         19  have that could inform what we are doing, you know,

         20  we want to have that available to us.  And you know,

         21  feel free to reachout to my staff, or to me

         22  personally, and we certainly, at every step of the

         23  way get the benefit of your views, I am sure will

         24  have a lot of discussions, and we will see what we

         25  can do to sort of mutually accommodate each other's
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          2  interest.

          3                 And I thank you for coming here

          4  today.

          5                 MR. ROSARIO:  Great, thank you very

          6  much, Mr. Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Where did you

          8  come from, where did you come from, did you come

          9  from Albany today?

         10                 MR. ROSARIO:  Well I live south of

         11  Albany, but my office is in Albany.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, so we had

         13  some --

         14                 MR. ROSARIO:  It was a nice drive, it

         15  wasn't snowy.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, there is

         17  like a special award that goes to the person that

         18  comes to the hearing that came the longest way.  We

         19  had the gentleman from Pennsylvania we had, okay.

         20                 MR. ROSARIO:  You may have someone

         21  from Washington, D.C. Here too.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  From

         23  Washington, okay.  So someone is going the get the

         24  long distance award.  But you know you are in the

         25  running, at the minimum you get honorable mention
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          2  for that.

          3                 MR. ROSARIO:  All right, thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

          5  Rosario, a pleasure to have you here with us today.

          6  You are a partner in this as we go forward.

          7                 And there was a previously called

          8  panel of Dennis Griesing, I hope I am seeing that

          9  right.  You know what, I have to leave the room for

         10  about one minute.  Counsel to the Committee will

         11  call the rest of the panel, swear you in, by the

         12  time that has happened, I will be back in my seat.

         13                 And then you can call the subsequent

         14  panel, as well.  I will be right back.

         15                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Ronald Ingber, Mike

         16  Zanche, Pamela Kennedy, and they are to be followed

         17  by Paul Ferruzza, Shelley Gervais, and Ann

         18  Salmadoran.

         19                 Please raise your right hands?  In

         20  the testimony you are about to give, do you swear or

         21  affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth, and

         22  nothing but the truth?

         23                 ALL:  I do.

         24                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, thank
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          2  you, thank you. I'm sorry I missed the swearing in

          3  part, how did that go, okay, it went well?  Great.

          4                 And so I have a couple of statements,

          5  so whoever, who wishes to go first?  Okay.

          6                 MR. GRIESING:  Mr. Chairman, Dennis

          7  Griesing, Soap and Detergent Association.  It is a

          8  pleasure to be here.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, and- -

         10                 MR. GRIESING:  I consider this

         11  Chamber my finishing school, I used to be here

         12  three, four times a month in the eighties.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  All right.  Now

         14  what is your name, Sir?

         15                 MR. GRIESING:  Dennis Griesing.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, so this

         17  is your statement here.

         18                 MR. GRIESING:  There is a statement

         19  and then there is a package, which includes the

         20  attachments to the statements, plus some other

         21  materials that I wanted the Committee to have.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, fine, okay,

         23  so I have this statement, and I got your card and

         24  statement, and then the package, and that

         25  constitutes your submission, right?
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          2                 MR. GRIESING:  That is the

          3  submission.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          5  please proceed.

          6                 MR. GRIESING:  I will be prompt.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Well, you know,

          8  as I see it, you know, your ox is being gored here a

          9  little bit.  But what we are trying to do, Sir, I

         10  really want to hear what you have to say.

         11                 MR. GRIESING:  Well that was part of

         12  the problem. When Mr. Colon called me on Friday and

         13  said, will you be speaking in opposition to or in

         14  support of?  I said, well it is like going to a

         15  wedding and being asked if you are a friend of the

         16  bride or the groom, I said I like them both.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         18                 MR. GRIESING:  We represent all the

         19  major manufacturers of cleaning products in the

         20  United States, and including those who make green

         21  cleaning products.  Our intent of being here today

         22  is simply to introduce ourselves again.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, sure.

         24                 MR. GRIESING:  We used to be up the

         25  street on Park Avenue South until four years ago, we
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          2  have moved to Washington. In addition, and we see

          3  this as a first conversation on a dialogue on a very

          4  technical issue.  On the general side, a caution,

          5  first of all, to be very, very careful of green

          6  claims. You have copy of the FTC's Guidelines for

          7  Environmental Claims in the package, these were very

          8  important instruments requested 10 years ago from

          9  the government to guide people in making correct

         10  claims.

         11                 Second, because green claims are

         12  generally so broad, I thought you would enjoy an

         13  article from the Boston Globe, which speaks to an

         14  issue being raised around an iconic product in the

         15  green products, which is simple green.  Well, I am

         16  not here to speak about simple green, per se, but

         17  take a look at that article and you will see the

         18  kinds of issues that are raised by green claims and

         19  the need to verify them.

         20                 As to the use of the terms, toxic and

         21  non- toxic, these are wildly thrown around in the

         22  EPP Debate, and often misused.  The real question is

         23  under what conditions is a substance toxic, not is

         24  it toxic or not.  Take water, on one end it is

         25  essential for life, on the other end it is fatal.
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          2  If you get too much in your lungs, you are dead.  If

          3  you don't drink it, you are dead.  So it is

          4  essential for life on one side, but we managed that

          5  risk.  That is the most practical example I can

          6  think of without getting into molecules.

          7                 We would urge that any standard be

          8  set that is going to be set for the City of New York

          9  include risk assessment, not just a list.

         10                 Second, on the generic side, you have

         11  to take a comprehensive approach to this project,

         12  along with the union representative.  We agree, it

         13  is training.  You have to have training.

         14                 We have been asked to innovate over

         15  the last 20 to 30 years, concentrate products,

         16  reduce packaging, for energy advantages, for

         17  environmental advantages.  And this is required more

         18  and more training of the end- user so that those

         19  goods are not lost at the end use.  We know there is

         20  a tendency to double dose.

         21                 I take Councilwoman Moskowitz and

         22  Councilman Recchia's comments about the malodorous

         23  effect of cleaning products in the cafeteria.  I

         24  cannot understand that a cleaning product

         25  manufacturer ever designed that product to have that
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          2  effect.  We have got to look at misuse, we know that

          3  people double- dose, we have got to stop it.  There

          4  are mechanisms, there are mechanical approaches to

          5  do this, close dispensing machines, for example.

          6                 There was a reference in the findings

          7  of the bill, to an article in the journal of

          8  occupational primal medicine. You will see a

          9  critique and an analysis of that for you, we will

         10  just leave it at that.

         11                 Green seal standards are sometimes

         12  problematic.  I know they are broadly used.  We have

         13  had issues with them over the years, and

         14  particularly with its proposed with the ban, APE,

         15  alkylphenol ethoxylates, we find their rationale for

         16  that proposal.

         17                 Ditto, Petrochemical- base Fragrance

         18  Ban.  We don't understand what that means.

         19  Petrochemical natural gas, as well as oleochemicals,

         20  those made from tallow and seed oils are all used as

         21  raw materials to make products.  The result is

         22  synthesized molecule, that is what goes into the

         23  product.  Nobody is dumping petroleum into a product

         24  that I know.  And so we would like some

         25  clarification on that.  And we are also concerned
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          2  about the larger implications when we get to the

          3  bio- based products.

          4                 There is an oblique reference in

          5  Section 24- 803 to the United Nations.  We think you

          6  are referring to the Globally Harmonized System for

          7  Chemical Hazard Classification and Labeling.  SDA's

          8  technical department has represented the American

          9  consumer product industry for over 12 years since

         10  the development of these standards.  We are now

         11  going through the implementation phase.

         12                 What is important for you to know is

         13  that there is UN document out there.  It doesn't

         14  become effective until it is adopted on a national,

         15  nation- by- nation, basis.  So that in this case it

         16  is premature to reference that standard.  It would

         17  have to be adopted by the United States, it will

         18  have to go through the Congress and the Executive

         19  Agencies, and the proper modifications will be made

         20  through standing legislation in order to accommodate

         21  it.  That is when it is appropriate, I think, to

         22  reference it.

         23                 Antimicrobial soap, a ban is proposed

         24  to antimicrobial soaps with no reason given.

         25  Antimicrobial soaps play an important role in public
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          2  health.  But here again there is no rationale

          3  presented.  We can only speculate that it is based

          4  on concerns that have been raised on a hypothetical

          5  basis about the potential for it to add to

          6  antibacterial resistance.  This is strictly

          7  hypothetical.  Every authority that we know, or the

          8  vast majority of authorities that we know,

          9  understand that this was caused by the over

         10  prescription of antibiotic drugs.

         11                 We have cited our web site, you are

         12  welcome to go there, we have a significant mount of

         13  material on our site from studies, et cetera.

         14                 Disinfectants and sanitizers we would

         15  strongly urge that you leave that exclusively to EPA

         16  and the FIFRA Department.  Once you begin playing

         17  with VOC limits and such, you get into a regulatory

         18  mirass (sic) make that exemption complete.

         19                 Bio- based preference, realize that

         20  it is a mandate.  I served in the Peace Corp. In the

         21  sixties, and I was in Brazil when they started to

         22  cut down the Amazon Forest.  And I have, for years,

         23  been concerned about issues such as bio diversity.

         24  By making it a policy that products should be bio

         25  based you will drive the establishment of palm oil,
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          2  palm tree monocultures in Brazil and Indonesia,

          3  Southeast Asia.  This process is already underway.

          4  And we know about, I don't think I need to tell you,

          5  given what I heard here today, that you understand

          6  bio- diversity and the need to preserve it.  This is

          7  a policy that has long- term implications, we need

          8  to discuss it.

          9                 In summary, we are simply here to

         10  urge caution with Intro. 552, and I regret the typo.

         11    There are potential pitfalls related to examining

         12  green claims.  And we know that there are products

         13  being touted as green, which really don't differ

         14  significantly in health and safety profiles, and you

         15  have to be very careful there.

         16                 My members, for example, tend to be

         17  very conservative in making marketing claims.  They

         18  have legal departments.

         19                 Let me end there, and I will be happy

         20  to answer questions.  You have our written material.

         21  The package includes very significant materials we

         22  feel.

         23                 SDA was founded in 1926 with a

         24  charter also from a personal hygiene.  That has

         25  been, we will have our 80th anniversary next year,
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          2  remains part of our charter.  What you have in those

          3  packages are materials related to asthma prevention

          4  and handwashing.  With the handwashing program for

          5  middle schools, we are very much involved and we are

          6  in partnership with the CDC.  We are also working on

          7  asthma- related materials with the CDC.  We clean

          8  for health not just to have sparkle.  That is our

          9  message.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         12  thank you so much.  Okay, who is going be next?  Oh,

         13  you are both from the same company, okay.

         14                 MS. KENNEDY: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  But, Dennis,

         16  stay.  Okay, go ahead.

         17                 MS. KENNEDY:  I am going to do a

         18  condense version of what we put in our packet.  If

         19  you have any questions on anything that I say,

         20  please ask me and we can explain it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You are Pamela,

         22  right?

         23                 MS. KENNEDY:  I am Pamela, yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, you have

         25  to state your name for the record.  So you are
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          2  Pamela, and - -

          3                 MS. KENNEDY:  With me is Mike Zanche.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, okay,

          5  got it.

          6                 MS. KENNEDY:  We were are very close

          7  on the name. We appreciate having the chance to --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You should

          9  speak right into the microphone, put it right up to

         10  your mouth.

         11                 MS. KENNEDY:  I'm sorry.  We

         12  appreciate the chance that you are giving us to be

         13  here today.  And even though we agree with the

         14  purpose of the efforts, we have a deep concern when

         15  cleaning chemicals are indicted and no one seems to

         16  key in on the heart of the problem, which is

         17  specifically disinfectants and bleach being used as

         18  cleaning agents.

         19                 Disinfectant detergents do not clean.

         20    They contribute to the build up of more soil, and

         21  they inoculate germs in the soil that is left

         22  behind, which enables them to become stronger and

         23  more dangerous.  Federal Law states that a

         24  disinfectant detergent must be applied to a pre-

         25  cleaned surface.
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          2                 According to the Cleaning Products

          3  and Work related Asthma Report, it was stated that

          4  cleaning chemicals most in question were the ones

          5  that contained pesticides or antiseptics.  It is

          6  incorrect to lump cleaning detergents in with EPA

          7  registered disinfectant detergents because they are

          8  not one and the same.

          9                 The spores mentioned in the report

         10  were part of the soil left behind due to ineffective

         11  cleaning.  If the surface is not cleaned 100

         12  percent, the remaining spores create more growth.

         13  Although we agree with the objectives, we deeply

         14  disagree with the strategy involved.  Our company

         15  has been in business since 1964.  We have proven

         16  without a doubt if custodians are correctly educated

         17  and trained prior to the use of high performance

         18  chemicals, consumption can and has been slashed by

         19  up to 70 percent or more, and costs cut 50 percent.

         20                 For example, facilities using our

         21  floor finish system do not have to strip their

         22  floors up to eight, nine, ten, or more years.  A few

         23  of the schools in the New York City system rank with

         24  our top performers.

         25                 The second part of your quest is to
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          2  prevent attacking our waste water system.  That is

          3  achieved by using high- performance, cleaning

          4  detergents that are able to remove maximum amounts

          5  of soil at minimum dilution.  High- performance

          6  detergents mix at one- quarter to one- half ounce

          7  per gallon of water, and can totally remove dirty

          8  engine oil from the floor     When a custodian tries

          9  to use a detergent that was purchased on low bid,

         10  they keep adding detergent to the cleaning solution

         11  in an attempt to achieve the needed cleaning

         12  results.  That scenario compounds wastewater

         13  treatment dilemmas.  If cleaning chemical

         14  manufacturers had to meet performance standards, as

         15  with other industries, they would have no choice but

         16  to produce high performance chemicals.  Competition

         17  would then force everyone to create and support

         18  marketing programs with real education programs.

         19                 In closing, we wish to stress that

         20  the conditions that you are so eagerly seeking have

         21  been available for years. We keep improving on the

         22  ones we have in place.  The ultimate challenge lies

         23  at the feet of our peers.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:   Thank you.

         25  You also have a statement?

                                                            145

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 MR. ZANCHE:  Just briefly.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, go ahead.

          4                 MR. ZANCHE:  I mean supporting that,

          5   - -

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Just state your

          7  name, for the record.

          8                 MR. ZANCHE:  My name is Mike Zanche.

          9  I am Operations Director - -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Speak right

         11  into the microphone.

         12                 MR. ZANCHE:  My name is Mike Zanche.

         13  I am Operations Manager for Gabriel First

         14  Corporation, East Rochester, New York.

         15                 Concurring with what Pam had stated

         16  and also it is kind of a double- edge saw, because

         17  to move forward in the green is definitely

         18  beneficial, but the manner in which they are going

         19  about it is our gravest concern.

         20                 A couple of questions I have is

         21  basically is based on setting up the authorization

         22  levels for establishing green. Right now the biggest

         23  difficulty we have in our industry is that you have

         24  private organizations, whether not- for- profit or

         25  whatever, and government agencies like the EPA that
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          2  really have not set a clear standard for industries

          3  to base on.  And especially some of the private

          4  entities have set fee structures so high.  We deal

          5  throughout the whole country, and losing New York

          6  would be a large portion of our business, but we

          7  will still survive and succeed.

          8                 We deal with many formulators

          9  throughout the country, which are very small

         10  companies, that have very good ideas, but they don't

         11  have ten to fifteen thousand dollars per item to pay

         12  to get authorization or acceptance for a label.

         13  Especially in a situation when one part in

         14  particular, their guidelines and their protocol,

         15  GS37, states that they are acknowledging 75 to 80

         16  percent is an acceptable level of clean. And once

         17  again, many of the studies that we read all go back

         18  to the misuse.  Once again, read a label on a

         19  disinfectant in your own bathrooms.  You have an

         20  aerosol can up there, read that label, to be

         21  utilized in accordance with EPA Law must be used on

         22  a pre- cleaned surface, but they are using it as a

         23  cleaner.  Which when you are going to discuss all

         24  the VOCs and all the access materials that are

         25  causing, you know, infections and asthma related
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          2  injuries and so on, that is in itself, and once

          3  again, when you use a product that leaves a film

          4  behind to kill whatever lands on it for a time

          5  rating, which was never cleaned properly in the

          6  first place, what are doing to that environment?

          7  How healthy will that environment become, and how

          8  healthy will it maintain itself.  That is our

          9  gravest concern.

         10                 It is good for industries like ours

         11  to have a good poke in the behind as with many, to

         12  force them to change.  But the concerns are strictly

         13  based on the fact of who they are implementing as

         14  the authority.  The lack of competition that it

         15  really, you know, but the lack of competition that

         16  it allows small companies to actually afford of all

         17  ethnicities and minority levels and so on, to afford

         18  to actually win bids and do proposals.

         19                 I mean, the bid process in itself can

         20  cause certain cost cutting factors that also harbor

         21  bad results and lower quality.  But the big concern

         22  is based, once again, how is it going to be

         23  implemented?  Because what is at hand right now is

         24  costing so many small companies and medium size

         25  companies that you cannot compete.  We cannot afford
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          2  to bankroll our company in hopes that we may.  And

          3  we have many customers and many contractors that are

          4  already meeting up against the thing, are you so and

          5  so approved?  And they can have products that will

          6  meet or maybe even exceed, and as technology gets

          7  better, that is the best part about this, it will

          8  get better, but they can meet or exceed.  But they

          9  don't have that "seal."

         10                 And now these people are ostracized

         11  and they have no means of selling the product or

         12  service.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         14  thank you.  I just as Dennis said, I mean, this is,

         15  I think, the opportunity today is to, for me as

         16  Chairman of this Committee, to become acquainted,

         17  you know, directly with you and with your concerns.

         18  And this is the first dialogue of an ongoing

         19  discussion.  Because as I have told the prior panel,

         20  it is like everything I do here is going to be fact-

         21  based.  And so, you know, I greatly appreciate your

         22  perspective because you do this every day, and you

         23  have my commitment that we will be partnering with

         24  you as we go forward.  And I thank you for being

         25  here today, and for coming a long way to be here.
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          2                 Okay, thank you very much, I

          3  appreciate it.

          4                 MR. ZANCHE:  At least the weather is

          5  cooperating.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, you bet.

          7  Okay the next panel, Paul Ferruzza of Rochester

          8  Midland, it looks like; Anselm Doering, am I saying

          9  that right, of EcoLogic Solutions; Shelley Gervais,

         10  if I am saying that right, of Naturally Yours.

         11                 So we are kind of on borrowed time

         12  now, there was another Chairman scheduled to Chair a

         13  hearing here at 1:00 p.m., he is late, that is

         14  working out for us.  So Paul Ferruzza, Anselm

         15  Doering, if I am saying that right, and Shelley

         16  Gervais, if I am saying that right.  Okay, Donna is

         17  going to swear you in.

         18                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Please raise your

         19  right hands? In the testimony that you are about to

         20  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         21  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         22                 ALL:  Yes.

         23                 MS. DE COSTANZO:  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, so

         25  whoever wishes to go first.  I just want to make
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          2  sure that I have the statements here.  Did each of

          3  you prepare a statement?  I have one from Paul.  Do

          4  we have prepared statements from the other

          5  witnesses? Okay. EcoLogic Solutions, I have, okay.

          6  So, Paul, you are Paul, right?  Okay, I have your

          7  statement, why don't you go first. Okay, and just

          8  state your name for the record, and then proceed.

          9                 MR. FERRUZZA:  Okay, thank you.  I am

         10  Paul Ferruzza from Rochester Midland Corporation.  I

         11  am going to keep this as brief as possible, because

         12  you have heard some very compelling information

         13  regarding the Proposed 552, which we are in favor

         14  for.

         15                 We are a manufacturer of

         16  institutional cleaners, disinfectants, degreasers,

         17  and so on, located in Rochester, New York.  We were

         18  founded in 1888, we are considered in the industry

         19  as the leaders in green housekeeping, being the

         20  first ones to be green sealed certified, as well as

         21  janitorial and the Eviro Care Line for the 15 years

         22  or so.  So we have a lot of experience as far as not

         23  only with manufacturing, but the application of

         24  green housekeeping.

         25                 We are a data driven organization, so
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          2  as far as any aquatic toxicity, human toxicity

          3  information, we have all that data.  We have steered

          4  away from the handwaving, over green, we are

          5  biodegradable, Nucor (phonetic) waste is

          6  biodegradable, it may take a few million years, so

          7  we have actually adopted the GS37 standard.

          8                 Some of our chemicals are green

          9  sealed certified. The other ones for cost factors,

         10  we just have the data to support that we do meet the

         11  GS37 standard.  So for the smaller companies out

         12  there that cannot afford to actually be certified,

         13  as long as they meet the GS37 standard, we support

         14  that fully.

         15                 Over 15 years ago, we introduced the

         16  first line of Environmentally Preferable Products in

         17  the janitorial business, they are known today as

         18  Enviro Care Products.  The products really have

         19  evolved to become effective, economical, and to

         20  reduce the impact of chemicals on human health and

         21  the environment.

         22                 With technology advancement over this

         23  time period, we have been able to discredit the old

         24  adage that if it is green, it must cost more and

         25  doesn't work as well as conventional cleaning.
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          2                 I have got a couple of quotes here

          3  from Gary Peacock, Department of Interior, who have

          4  been using the Enviro Care Line exclusively for

          5  floor care.  They have eliminated 500 pounds of zinc

          6  going into their waterways.  You can imagine the

          7  Chesapeake and the Potomac being pretty polluted.

          8  And basically stating that the green chemicals are

          9  cost neutral or less expensive.  Green products

         10  really work.  The entire effect is that green

         11  products, the Enviro Care Line, and DC is using over

         12  30 million square feet.  In effect the indoor air

         13  quality for as many as 90,000 federal employees in

         14  the DC area alone.  So you would be in wonderful

         15  company as far greening your buildings.

         16                 Not to mention, the Harrisburg, we

         17  look at the State of Massachusetts, Washington,

         18  Seattle, and so on, have already adopted green

         19  programs.

         20                 For nearly all conventional product

         21  there are environmentally preferable alternatives,

         22  they are available, and they must meet standards for

         23  performance as well as conventional products.  So we

         24  look at AST standards, which the State has to clean

         25  80 percent of the soil, that is the exact same
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          2  standard for conventional products as well.

          3                 Okay, I am going to skip a lot of

          4  this because you have already heard asthma trends

          5  and allergies, and so on.

          6                 Ten years ago green chemicals were

          7  not even on the map, today the cleaning and Jansen

          8  industries are in a position to be one of the

          9  biggest beneficiaries of the green sustainable

         10  movement.  It is not a fad. It is an accelerating

         11  global movement that is picking up supporters every

         12  day around the world.

         13                 By taking steps toward more

         14  environmentally responsible procurement, we can save

         15  money, help prevent pollution, and respect the

         16  health of our cleaning staff and building occupants,

         17  and improving the quality of life here in New York.

         18                 I have got some supporting documents,

         19  as well.  If you want actual data as far as toxicity

         20  data, it is available on our web site, just go to

         21  greenhousekeeping.com.  I just wanted to say the

         22  chemicals are available, the cleaning products are

         23  available.  They don't cost any more, they work just

         24  as well, and they are obtainable through a number of

         25  distributors throughout New York.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  But you forgot

          3  the most important thing.  They are made in New

          4  York.

          5                 MR. FERRUZZA:  They are made in New

          6  York.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I just had to

          8  add that.  And thank you, thank you, Paul.

          9                 MR. FERRUZZA:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And then we

         11  have Anselm, I guess, of EcoLogic Solutions, okay.

         12  We have, or in whatever order you wish.

         13                 MR. DOERING:  That is fine.  Ammonia,

         14  chlorine, petroleum --  I'm sorry?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You have to

         16  state your name for the record.

         17                 MR. DOERING:  Anselm Doering,

         18  EcoLogic Solutions. Ammonia, chlorine, petroleum

         19  distillates, butyl ether, sodium hydroxide,

         20  aerosols, perchloroethylene, zinc, formaldehyde,

         21  carcinogens, mutagens, these hazardous ingredients

         22  can be found in every day, household and

         23  institutional standard cleaning products.  They are

         24  all replaceable with safer alternatives.

         25                 I am Anselm Doering, and my company
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          2  is EcoLogic Solutions.  We introduce mass consumers

          3  to the most effective and deepest green alternatives

          4  in the world.  We currently sell to hotels,

          5  restaurants, universities, property management

          6  companies, school systems, resorts, spas, and many

          7  other institutions.

          8                 My efforts in the green movement for

          9  13 years have been recognized by CNN, CNBC, New York

         10  Times, Wall Street Journal, and many others.  Most

         11  of EcoLogic Solution's customers originally did not

         12  have any green initiatives or personality traits at

         13  their institution.  And yet, after meeting with us,

         14  they were able to convert using documented, safer

         15  products that are more effective than the hazardous

         16  norm.  And in most cases, save them upwards of 40

         17  percent in chemical expenses.  Many times, they are

         18  able to streamline one product, purchasing in use of

         19  one product for as many six different areas that you

         20  list in your bills.

         21                 My company offers a full array of

         22  products that can service many different

         23  institutions needs today.  The key is that there are

         24  products that exist already that can out- perform

         25  the hazardous standards, cost less, and are
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          2  documented to be safer.  Some of these options were

          3  the preferred choice and recommended by EPA

          4  consultants of the Santa Monica and the Yellowstone

          5  Studies, and helped develop the green seal

          6  certification standards.  By converting to these

          7  eco- options, it will reduce employee compensation,

          8  while increasing their motivation and their

          9  productivity.

         10                 Operations need to be educated that

         11  these alternatives exist, and know that services are

         12  available to help make the conversion successful at

         13  their establishment.  This is where my company comes

         14  in.

         15                 Today, EcoLogic Solutions could

         16  install a successful deep green program that falls

         17  under every guideline in this Bill 552, save money,

         18  and be able to meet the needs of many different

         19  types of institutions that can be from pots washing

         20  to glass cleaner.

         21                 Municipalities are notoriously touch

         22  to break, a lot of gridlock.  This is a great

         23  opportunity for the City Council to lead by example.

         24  By passing this strong bill, it will facilitate the

         25  process of converting its own mass consumers of many
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          2  degrees towards using deep green options.  This in

          3  turn would set a positive example for other

          4  municipalities, governments, and consumers to

          5  follow.  This is a win for everybody involved.  It

          6  is a win for the end- user, their fellow employees,

          7  reducing indoor air pollution.  It is a win for the

          8  bottom line, it is a win for the environment, it is

          9  a win for New York State, it is win for the law-

         10  makers who can see the fruit of their labor, and

         11  have a compound positive impact.

         12                 My company truly looks to raise the

         13  bar on green seal, on Rochester Midland, and other

         14  major corporations that have many resources that

         15  could improve upon standards that they developed

         16  currently.  And I left you a bunch of kits for your

         17  review.  There is a lot of information in there,

         18  although, this testimony is not.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  And your last

         20  name is pronounced how?

         21                 MR. DOERING:  Doering.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Doering, okay,

         23  thank you, thank you.

         24                 MS. GERVAIS:  Hello, I am Shelley

         25  Gervais with Naturally Yours, and I would like to
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          2  thank you for taking this time with me, Chairman.  I

          3  came from Springfield, Missouri, so I think I get

          4  the award.  I left my four dogs and my pig to come

          5  see your town, very nice.

          6                 I actually am just here to support,

          7  our company to support your 552.  Naturally, Yours

          8  was the vendor that sponsored the Santa Monica pilot

          9  project.  And so we worked with Santa Monica in the

         10  early nineties, and subsequently, we have not worked

         11  with them, and worked with them, and not worked

         12  them, and worked with them, and still continue to

         13  sell to Santa Monica.

         14                 So what I brought, and I am sorry I

         15  don't have extra copies, this is your copy.  I spent

         16  $65 and got these downloaded for you, you thought

         17  you can either download them yourself, or copy, but

         18  a study from the EPA about the Santa Monica pilot

         19  project.  It was quoted in, I see in your 552 that

         20  3,200 pounds of toxic waste reduction and the 5

         21  percent savings, I think, there is also the savings,

         22  there are no sick calls.  You know that contributes

         23  to the savings, I don't know if that was part of it.

         24                 Also, the EPA Greening Your Purchase

         25  of Cleaning Products, and also the State of Oregon,
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          2  also did a write up about the Santa Monica pilot

          3  project, what happened there.

          4                 This is the City Council meeting

          5  where they awarded Naturally Yours the bid in 1999,

          6  and they use, exclusively our products.  And I just

          7  wanted to bring that so that you know I am not

          8  crazy.

          9                 And this is the most important piece

         10  of information I would like to offer, just mainly a

         11  support.  The woman that was in charge of the pilot

         12  project, and also had the program when it failed,

         13  had the program when it succeeded, she has now moved

         14  on to the County and City of, she is in charge of

         15  the Department of Environment for the County and

         16  City of San Francisco.  Her name is Debbie Rosell.

         17  She has written this, how to implement program, and

         18  she is great, she is in San Francisco, and it is a

         19  great resource to you.  If you cannot find her, you

         20  can call me and I will get her number to you.

         21                 Thank you for your time.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         23  thank you for coming here all the way from Missouri

         24  to give us the benefit of your views, and to show

         25  the commitment that you have to this great effort,
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          2  and we appreciate that.

          3                 I want those for my benefit.

          4                 MS. GERVAIS:  These are for you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, so if I

          6  can direct the Sergeant.  Now do you have your

          7  business card attached to that or something?

          8                 MS. GERVAIS:  I just wrote my name

          9  and web site, and my phone number.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, fine.

         11                 MS. GERVAIS:  On top of the folder.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, terrific.

         13                 MS. GERVAIS:  I can send you - -

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I got it right

         15  here, I got it all right here, which is great, thank

         16  you.  Thank you.

         17                 MS. GERVAIS:  You are welcome.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Shelley, I

         19  appreciate your being here, and we will keep you

         20  part of the team as we go forward.  Mr. Doering and

         21  Mr. Ferruzza, thank you, as well, for your great

         22  commitment to this effort.  Now you came from

         23  Rochester, New York.  Okay.  And then, you know, Mr.

         24  Doering had to come all the way from Brooklyn.  So

         25  he had to cross a water body to get here.  But, you
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          2  know, thank you for developing your very successful

          3  leading green business here in New York City. This

          4  is what we really, you know, do in New York City.  I

          5  get to talk about it all day, but you are actually

          6  doing it.  So I really do appreciate that.  And

          7  thank you for, you know, reaffirming to me that we

          8  are on the right track here, and I thank you for

          9  your efforts in being way out in front of me on

         10  this, but I hope to catch up to you.

         11                 MR. DOERING:  Yes, I would like to

         12  offer one thing, if I may?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

         14                 MR. DOERING:  You are more than

         15  invited to go to the Statue of Liberty or Ellis

         16  Island who have been on our green program for the

         17  last two years and see the effectiveness as well as

         18  talk to the employees about as far as cost

         19  reductions and easy use of the product.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Terrific,

         21  terrific, I would love to.  So thank you.

         22                 MS. GERVAIS:  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you very

         24  much.  Okay, let me just find out if we are going to

         25  be thrown out of the room or not.  Okay, we have one
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          2  last panel, Jen Roth, New York Industrial Retention

          3  Network; Katherine Tiddens o Terrace Verde; Mark

          4  Vaccaro, co- chair of the CRAB; Maggie Clarke of the

          5  Waste Reduction Coalition; Nancy Vandenberg; and Tim

          6  Logan.

          7                 Let me just preface everything.  Not

          8  to be rude, and not to be like a bad guy.  I love

          9  you all, I know you love this stuff, I understand

         10  that.  There are like lots of reasons for why we

         11  want to try to do this stuff, but we have to get to

         12  the other, and it is always a shame that the people

         13  who have waited the longest, who have been the most

         14  patient, get the bum's rush at the end.  Life just

         15  isn't fair, and I am sorry about that.  But to the

         16  extent that people can succinctly indicate, you

         17  know, other than the fact that you love like what we

         18  are doing, you know, specific ways to improve the

         19  bills or whatever.  And so with that said, and I

         20  apologize for that, I am going to hurry you all

         21  along because James Sanders is going to throw us out

         22  of this room in a couple of minutes.  And so, but I

         23  do love you all, so just please know that.

         24                 So in any order you wish to, you know

         25  what, I will tell you what, because I love all these

                                                            163

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  people, they don't have to be sworn in, they are

          3  going to tell the truth, trust me, and so they are

          4  not going to be sworn in.  So why don't we start in

          5  whatever order you wish to proceed.  Okay, on the

          6  left.

          7                 MS. VANDENBERG:  My name is Nancy

          8  Vandenberg.  I have very short comments, they are

          9  housekeeping comments on your bills.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, thank you.

         11                 MS. VANDENBERG:  I bring a certain

         12  amount of experience to this, I was involved as an

         13  Environmental Procurement Specialist from 1985 to

         14  2000, contributed the procurement section to Local

         15  Law 19, so I am a little aware of what you lost when

         16  you eliminated it.

         17                 We work very hard to eliminate

         18  purchasing barriers in the General Municipal Law.  I

         19  want you to listen very carefully to what DCAS has

         20  to say and see whether or not they are completely

         21  oblivious of the barriers that have been already

         22  eliminated back in the early nineties.

         23                 I also wrote a bunch of those EPA

         24  guidelines that you are interested in implementing.

         25  I must commend this group of bills.  It is a
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          2  terrific start, we have been asking for things like

          3  this for a long time.

          4                 I have three issues for you:

          5  Reporting, provisions that you have eliminated, and

          6  profound support for 534, do that one first.

          7                 On reporting, reporting is your

          8  opportunity for accountability.  Trying to find out

          9  who buys what, how they buy it, what they did, if

         10  they do not have good reporting requirements no one

         11  will ever know.  I have evaluated New York City's

         12  purchasing program two or three times in the past.

         13  It is torture in the details.  Increase do not

         14  eliminate your reporting requirements.  You also

         15  need to report to the citizenry.  You have

         16  eliminated the provision where a recycled product

         17  reporting has been eliminated to the Citizen's

         18  Advisory Council, the CRABs and the SWABs, no one

         19  has mentioned that.  I am sure it was an oversight.

         20                 I am not familiar with similar bodies

         21  that might constituted in law that would have a

         22  profound interest in some of the other bills.  And

         23  if you don't have these bodies, please constitute

         24  some.  We are your avenue to the citizens.  You

         25  know, I know, the media doesn't cover these issues
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          2  at all.  So the folks, at large, haven't got a clue,

          3  we are your voice to the citizens.

          4                 Eliminations, you know, I found out

          5  about these bills yesterday, so I didn't really do a

          6  lot of legal research. I am going to quote from

          7  Maggie Clarke's comments that you are going to have

          8  a copy of.  I can't tell what some of the specific

          9  eliminations are because we couldn't find them in

         10  the Administrative Code when we tried to find them

         11  on the web.  I do know that when you eliminated

         12  Subchapter V, 16322, you eliminated two things I can

         13  spot.  One was the reporting requirements to the

         14  SWABs and the CRABs.  The other is, have you

         15  eliminated the price preference for recycled

         16  products?  Someone says it still exists, but we

         17  cannot see that in the laws, or in these bills that

         18  you have presented.  So, please do not eliminate the

         19  price preference that exists for recycled products.

         20                 The last time I looked in 1994 we

         21  were spending peanuts, minuscule amounts of money

         22  for a huge impact that drags vendors directly to

         23  your doors.

         24                 And my last point, your bill 534 is

         25  brilliant.  We truly need this Office of
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          2  Environmental Purchasing.  But when I looked through

          3  the other bills, I could see that the reporting

          4  requirements would not coordinate with this new

          5  office.  So please do your housekeeping, pass 534

          6  for the Office of Environmental Purchasing first.

          7  Then housekeep your other bills so that the

          8  reporting can all be coordinated, and then expand

          9  the list of people to whom these reports go.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         12  Nancy.

         13                 MR. VACCARO:  Hello, I am Mark

         14  Vaccaro.  I am Co Chair of the CRAB, which was

         15  established by Local Law 19.  The CRAB is the

         16  Citywide Recycling Advisory Board, and it will come

         17  as no shock to you that we support 534 and 545.  I

         18  will keep my comments brief, also.

         19                 One thing that was not mentioned

         20  today in the big picture issue, is that New York

         21  City is about to become a major material supplier

         22  for recycling markets.  With win it is finally

         23  announced, officially completed, the long term

         24  contract and with the eventual establishment of the

         25  MRF, New York City will be supplying for 20 years
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          2  really large, steady quantities of recycled

          3  materials.  We will be a mine, a forest.

          4                 This is material that we will be

          5  selling, in essence, on the open market.  We should

          6  be buying some of this material back, obviously, in

          7  our due recycled content.  But I think it is

          8  important to keep in mind that we are a provided of

          9  recycled content, and we are going to become a very

         10  big one in the near future.

         11                 My other comments are somewhat along

         12  Nancy's lines in terms of housekeeping comments.  I

         13  think you really should, not just, because I am co-

         14  chair of the crowd, but just because these are

         15  organizations that do keep track of things.  You

         16  should make sure that reporting requirements to the

         17  CRABs and the Boroughwide SWABs is returned.

         18                 On that note, I want to mention that

         19  CRAB did do a recycling round table, which among

         20  other things helps to sort of get the whole idea

         21  going about redoing the recycling contracts and got

         22  us going.  We are a major resource in that way, of

         23  providing technical assistance, and maybe even doing

         24  something like that, if you want it to work around

         25  developing a serrate (phonetic) or a round table
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          2  around both recycled content and environmental

          3  purchasing, and so forth.

          4                 The Manhattan SWAB did a serrate, I

          5  know, on siting issues, in which now Sanitation and

          6  the Council is going to be using for part of the

          7  politically sensitive siting of MTSs.

          8                 So those are my major comments.

          9  Actually, it would be nice if somebody from the

         10  staff actually wanted to present these bills to the

         11  CRAB about a week and a half, two weeks from now, we

         12  would appreciate that also.  But in the long term,

         13  mid- term, we would be willing to work with you guys

         14  in getting some work done on these issues.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         17  thank you, Mark, I appreciate that.  I appreciate

         18  that offer of having us come before the CRAB, as

         19  well.

         20                 MS. TIDDENS:  Hi, I am Katherine

         21  Tiddens.  I operate Terra Verde and Ecological Home

         22  Furnishing Store in SoHo for 12 years.  And I

         23  currently have boutiques in Japan and the Mitshcosi

         24  Department Stores.  And I have --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Why don't you
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          2  give that address again, slowly, so that people who

          3  are seeing this have the benefit to know.  No,

          4  really, this is going to be on Crosswalks, so it is

          5  Terra Verde.

          6                 MS. TIDDENS:  Terra Verde, I had a

          7  store from 1990 until 2000 in SoHo, and my stores

          8  are currently in Japanese, in Mitshcosi Department

          9  Stores.  And I am now working as a consultant and

         10  product developer.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         12                 MS. TIDDENS:  And I have tons of

         13  material, which has already been covered.  So I just

         14  wanted to make a few points, and I am going to speak

         15  very quickly.

         16                 The proposed initiative mentions

         17  water and air pollution from conventional cleaners

         18  and finishes as one of your concerns.  I would also

         19  like to make the point that pollution is waste.  It

         20  means that something and necessary is added to a

         21  production process.  What is often not considered is

         22  that the fragrance, artificial drying agents,

         23  preservatives, color, aesthetic enhancers, and other

         24  additives, about which we are speaking today, are

         25  not only a unnecessary additions to cleaning
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          2  products and potentially harmful ones, but are made

          3  from non renewable resources.  The plants where

          4  these additives are produced generate their own

          5  environmental problems and are not part of the

          6  sustainable future.

          7                 There are problems with certain

          8  elements of green cleaning products such a palm oil,

          9  but we should still advocate sustainable products

         10  while improving the processes used to make them.

         11                 After 12 years of selling

         12  environmentally sound cleaning, finishing, and

         13  personal care products, and actually doing green

         14  renovation in 12 stores, they were completely done

         15  with green building products and so forth, I found

         16  that the quality varies tremendously.  We eventually

         17  found products in every category that were

         18  economical and out- performed conventional products,

         19  but there are a lot of mediocre and mislabeled green

         20  products on the market.  I think that in order for

         21  this initiative to be embraced by the workers who

         22  will be using the new products, rigorous testing

         23  must be implemented so that the process is

         24  satisfactory for all.

         25                 As to the issue of recycling, my
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          2  experience in research and development has led me to

          3  the conclusion that in many cases by the time a

          4  product is ready for recycling, a tremendous amount

          5  of energy waste and pollution has already occurred.

          6  The wave for the future is pre- cycling.  I urge

          7  that the City consider measures for funding research

          8  and development in areas such as beverage

          9  containers, shipping containers, and take- out and

         10  restaurant containers, just to name a few, and

         11  practices concerned with those industries.  Two

         12  examples:

         13                 What if when you order take- out food

         14  you had to order the forks, the napkins, the

         15  condiments, and so forth, instead of having to try

         16  to speak to someone about not adding those into your

         17  order?

         18                 What about a design competition for

         19  universal, reusable, take- out containers?  This

         20  could have  a huge impact on the waste generated by

         21  the City.

         22                 As in some cities in Europe,

         23  companies, which manufacture appliances, should be

         24  responsible for the unit at the end of its natural

         25  life.  For example, instead of buying a washing
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          2  machine, you rent a machine, which delivers 30,000

          3  wash cycles.  We need to imagine what a sustainable

          4  future looks like, not choose the least damaging of

          5  the current choices.

          6                 Just as pre- cycling is essential for

          7  wise use, legislation requiring proper labeling of

          8  products for procurement and use is essential.  The

          9  shield of proprietary information, shields

         10  companies, not consumers.  A label like VOC free

         11  tells us very little about the content of products.

         12  There are tens of thousands of unregulated chemicals

         13  available for use in these products, and one has no

         14  way of knowing what is in them.

         15                 When I was recently shopping for a

         16  non- toxic - -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I need to ask

         18  you to summarize, unfortunately, to conclude,

         19  actually, I am sorry.

         20                 MS. TIDDENS:  Many warning labels

         21  which used to be present on building materials are

         22  now absent, and a warning in very small type direct

         23  a customer to a web site for information. How many

         24  construction workers and custodial workers have the

         25  time to go on line before using a product or the
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          2  expertise to read and evaluate a material, safety

          3  data sheet?

          4                 I think the City should have full

          5  disclosure of ingredients and full use and warning

          6  labels for use on any product used, probably in

          7  Spanish as well as English.

          8                 Thank you for your attention, and for

          9  this very important and exciting work.  And I would

         10  urge you to push the limits on this project, because

         11  if people are going to meet you half way, you have

         12  to go further.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         14  Thank you, Katherine.

         15                 MS. ROTH:  Hi, my name is Jen Roth.

         16  I am the Director of Research and Policy at the New

         17  York Industrial Retention Network (NYIRN), and I had

         18  to leave earlier, so I submitted my formal

         19  testimony, I will just summarize right now.

         20                 The New York Industrial Retention

         21  Network is a citywide economic development

         22  organization that works to keep manufacturers in the

         23  City, and doing so based on principles of economic

         24  and environmental justice.  And therefore, we are

         25  very supportive of the bills that are being
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          2  discussed here today.

          3                 And I would say, you know, the

          4  majority of the manufacturers in the City would not

          5  today qualify for green standards.  But the City has

          6  such enormous purchasing power that putting these

          7  bills forward really shape the market.  We have

          8  talked to a lot of companies and they just don't see

          9  that that market exists today.  So passing these

         10  bills and having the City lead by example will

         11  certainly show them that that investment and

         12  tweaking their products to become green will be

         13  extremely worthwhile.

         14                 I also wanted to mention that the New

         15  York Industrial Retention Network in collaboration

         16  with ITAC and the Manufacturers Association of New

         17  York have a program called Made In NYC, which is

         18  supportive by an on line business- to- business

         19  database to help encourage businesses to buy from

         20  other local businesses.  And we really see the local

         21  production as a critical component of sustainable

         22  development, and see these bills as moving that

         23  forward as well.

         24                 So I think that these are incredible

         25  steps forward, and we really appreciate your effort
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          2  and look forward to working with you in the future.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Jen.

          4    I am glad, it is always good to work with you

          5  guys, and thanks for your thoughtful position on

          6  what we are doing here.

          7                 Tim.

          8                 MR. LOGAN:  Hi, Timothy Logan,

          9  consultant to the Consumer Policy Institute of

         10  Consumers Union.  My testimony is on behalf of

         11  myself, and Barbara Warren, who could not be here

         12  today.  And I will dispense with a good portion of

         13  it.  It will be emailed to the entire Committee,

         14  officially mailed to avoid the waste of paper.

         15                 Because the history of our work on

         16  New York City toxic and waste issues, we wish to

         17  focus on the bills related to environmental

         18  purchasing and reduction in the use of hazardous

         19  products today.  We commend the members of this

         20  Committee, the Chairperson for introducing Intros.

         21  534, 544, 545, and 552, and for holding the public

         22  hearings today.  These four bills collectively

         23  represent a number of unaddressed issues in previous

         24  bills over the course of the last decade.

         25                 It is troubling that despite
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          2  considerable debate, the Council of the City of New

          3  York has not yet required the City of New York to

          4  buy environmentally preferable products, including

          5  those with fewer toxic materials and with post-

          6  consumer recycled content.  We urge this Committee

          7  to consider public comments and to take action to

          8  pass comprehensive legislation that finally

          9  addresses the issues in these four bills.

         10                 Thank you for providing us with this

         11  opportunity. In general, the adoptive legislation

         12  should require all City agencies:

         13                 To engage in environmental purchasing

         14  in a proactive manner.

         15                 To use the City's purchasing power to

         16  encourage the production of more sustainable goods

         17  with fewer adverse impacts in production in consumer

         18  use and at the end of their useful life.

         19                 Result in safer workplaces for City

         20  workers. Reduce the exposure of the public to

         21  hazardous materials being used by the City and being

         22  disposed of.

         23                 Set up a strong role for DEP to

         24  evaluate toxic substances and make determinations

         25  regarding a preferred list of non- toxic and least
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          2  toxic products for use by City agencies, as well as

          3  identifying those products that should be severely

          4  restricted or prohibited from use by City agencies

          5  and contractors.

          6                 Require regular reporting on agency

          7  progress and benefits derived from the program.

          8                 Set up a funding mechanism for these

          9  environmental programs within DEP.  Legislation

         10  without funding is not helpful for DEP, particularly

         11  which is largely 95 percent a sewer and water agency

         12  with only 5 percent of its budget available for

         13  other environmental programs.

         14                 We recommend that Intro. 534 related

         15  to environmental purchasing include additional

         16  reporting in annual reports.  Under Section 24-

         17  8002, dollar expenditures on environmental

         18  preferable products should be compared with dollar

         19  expenditures of non- preferable products for each

         20  agency.  And then within each agency by product

         21  category.

         22                 In addition, there should be an

         23  effort to identify any barriers to progress and what

         24  has been done to overcome them. This legislation

         25  should also create a greater role for DEP in
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          2  identifying persistent, biocumulative toxins or PBTs

          3  and other hazardous materials to avoid in

          4  purchasing.

          5                 I will just skip the rest.  Thank you

          6  for your attention.

          7                 The fact that we didn't address the

          8  green energy stuff is not that we don't support it.

          9  It is just not the programs that we work on.  And

         10  when it comes to product testing, Consumers Union

         11  has been up there, buying off the shelf not taking

         12  product samples.  You can certainly trust the work

         13  that is put out in Consumer reports on that kind of

         14  thing as well.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         17  Thank you, Tim, and I want to thank the entire

         18  panel.  Okay, let me just dismiss the panel, and

         19  then I will do that.  Thank you all for your

         20  comments, Tim, I know we are going to get yours via

         21  email.  And then we have Donna De Costanzo and Russ

         22  Unger who are working on these bills.  Make sure you

         23  have their names and numbers so we can continue the

         24  contact with them.  Thank you all very much.

         25                 I want to, I have to read this into
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          2  the record. We have testimony for the record from

          3  Arthur Weissman, President of the CEO of the Green

          4  Seal Incorporated.  Louise Vettera, CEO of American

          5  Lung Association.

          6                 I want to thank in a special way

          7  Council Member James Sanders who let us go overtime,

          8  because he has this room as of one o'clock, he was

          9  very gracious to let us go over.

         10                 With that said, and all the witnesses

         11  wishing to be heard, this hearing is adjourned.

         12                 (Hearing adjourned at 2:00 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 15th day of February 2005.
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         24                          PAT WTULICH
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          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3
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          8

          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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         23

         24

         25

